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Our Mission as a Regional Bank
Since its establishment in 1899, the Fukui Bank has remained firmly committed to sound management and growth in partnership 
with the regional community. The Bank owes its position today to the loyal support of its customers, shareholders, and other 
stakeholders.

In October 2015, we established the Bank’s corporate philosophy of striving to cultivate and promote regional industry and 
achieving prosperous living conditions for the region’s population, and have been working together as the Fukui Bank Group for 
the advancement of the region.

Since April 2018, we have been advancing our medium-term management plan “Toward Realizing Our Corporate Philosophy 
(Chapter 1),” the three-year period of which is defined as a period for growth together with the region and customers and in step 
with the changing times. 

In order to realize our corporate philosophy, which encapsulates the mission of the Bank, we have established two concepts 
(namely, “Faster, deeper, wider” and “Change, transform, modify)” and four topical areas of activity (winning new customers by 
helping increase the number of workplaces and workers; strengthening consulting functions, selecting and concentrating on 
fields of business activity; and, revolutionizing personnel development), which we will implement faithfully and enthusiastically.

Together, all employees and executive officers of the Fukui Bank Group will keep striving to fulfill the expectations of our 
shareholders, customers, and members of the regional community. To this end, we would like to request your continued support 
and patronage.

Transition to Committee-Based Governance System
In June 2007, the Fukui Bank adopted the “company with committees” (“company with a nominating committee, etc.”)* system of 
corporate governance. This change was implemented to strengthen governance structures through the separation of executive 
and supervisory functions, to speed up executive functions by delegating decision-making authority, and to improve 
management transparency by establishing three committees on which the majority of members are outside directors.

The Fukui Bank is determined to maintain the full confidence of all stakeholders by continually strengthening its governance 
structures and by fulfilling its responsibilities as a joint-stock corporation and regional financial institution through the provision of 
a wide range of products and services.

*In accordance with the May 1, 2015 enactment of the Act for Partial Revision of the Companies Act, relabeled as “company with 
a nominating committee, etc.”

Profile

Innovative Action

Consolidated Financial Highlights
The Fukui Bank, Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries

Years ended March 31,

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2016 2018

For the Year:
Total income .................................................................. ¥ 44,155 ¥ 44,741 ¥ 47,386 $ 415,623 

Total expenses .............................................................. 37,952 37,059 36,426 357,238 

Income (loss) before income taxes ...................................... 6,202 7,682 10,960 58,385 

Net income attributable to owners of parent.................. 3,927 4,184 7,304 36,970 

Net income (loss) per share of common stock ............... 165.57 175.94 30.51 1.56 

At Year-end:
Deposits ........................................................................ ¥ 2,324,100 ¥ 2,245,159 ¥ 2,151,627 $ 21,875,941 

Loans and bills discounted ............................................ 1,617,855 1,591,806 1,574,065 15,228,306 

Trading account securities ............................................. 504 709 449 4,747 

Securities....................................................................... 609,185 636,661 658,366 5,734,052 

Total assets ................................................................... 2,673,165 2,599,619 2,464,121 25,161,573 

Total net assets ............................................................. 128,310 124,092 137,886 1,207,744 

Note: The U.S. dollar amounts represent translation of Japanese yen at the exchange rate of ¥106.24 per US$1.00 on March 31, 2018.
 The inclusion of such dollar amounts is solely for convenience and is not intended to imply that Japanese yen have been or could be readily converted, realized, or 

settled in U.S. dollars at this or any other exchange rate.
On October 1, 2017, we implemented a consolidation of shares at a ratio of one share per 10 shares.
For the purposes of calculating the amount of net income per share of common stock for the period under review, the share consolidation is taken as having been 
implemented at the beginning of fiscal year ended March 31, 2017.
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Financial & Economic Environments 
The Japanese economy in the period under review displayed 
improvements in corporate earnings, employment, and 
household incomes, as business activity proceeded on a 
moderately-paced recovery course. The duration of the upturn 
to date has exceeded the Izanagi economic boom and marks 
the second-longest economic growth phase postwar. 
Moreover, on the Tokyo stock market the Nikkei stock average 
rallied strongly in November, posting the highest closing price 
in 26 years. Even so, however, the future outlook for the 
economy remains uncertain, overshadowed by international 
factors such as strengthening trade protectionism in the U.S. 
and deteriorating conditions in the Middle East.

The regional economy of Fukui Prefecture showed a 
continuing overall recovery trend driven by personal 
consumption rebounding on the back of improved 
environments for employment and household incomes and 
fueled by favorable corporate activity centering on electronics 
parts and devices. At the regional level, in connection with the 
extension of the Hokuriku Shinkansen into Fukui Prefecture in 
the near future, activities surrounding tourism and urban 
development have further intensified, giving rise to growing 
expectations for a further acceleration of economic activity in 
the prefecture in the time ahead. However, the ratio of effective 
job openings to job seekers in the prefecture remains high and 
the effects of the labor shortage on corporate activities will 
require close attention.

Consolidated Performance Review
The consolidated performance of the Fukui Bank and six 
consolidated subsidiaries in the fiscal year under review is as 
follows.

Consolidated ordinary income decreased by ¥701 million 
from the previous year to ¥43,982 million mainly due to a 
decline in interest on loans and discounts. Ordinary expenses 
increased by ¥650 million from the previous year to ¥37,654 
million due to higher operating expenses.
As a result, ordinary income decreased by ¥1,352 million from 
the previous year to ¥6,327 million. Net income attributable to 
owners of the parent decreased by ¥257 million from the 
previous year to ¥3,927 million.

In terms of reportable segments, ordinary income of 
banking operations decreased by ¥374 million from the 
previous year to ¥36,883 million. Segment profit decreased by 
¥1,006 million from the previous year to ¥5,783 million. Ordinary 
income in leasing operations decreased by ¥415 million from 
the previous year to ¥7,295 million, while segment profit 
decreased by ¥72 million to ¥344 million. Ordinary income in 
“Others” outside of the reportable segments decreased by 
¥353 million to ¥582 million, and segment profit decreased by 
¥325 million from the previous year to ¥64 million. Each amount 
above included intersegment transactions.

Cash Flows
Consolidated net cash flows rose by ¥27,855 million provided 
by operating activities, ¥32,182 million provided by investing 
activities, and ¥990 million used in financing activities. As a 
result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year were 
¥354,241 million, which increased by ¥59,053 million compared 
with the previous year.
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥27,855 million. 
Main factors behind the increase were income from an increase 
in deposits and call money that exceeded expenditure, 
reflecting factors such as a drop in payables under securities 
lending transactions and increased lending. Net cash provided 
by operating activities was ¥111,937 million lower than in the 
previous fiscal year.
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash provided by investing activities was ¥32,182 million. 
Main factors behind the increase were income from the sale 
and redemption of securities, which exceeded expenditure for 
the acquisition of securities. Net cash provided by investing 
activities was ¥32,663 million higher than in the previous fiscal 
year.
Net cash used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities was ¥990 million reflecting 
expenditure for the payment of dividends among others. Net 
cash used in financing activities was ¥13,599 million lower than 
in the previous fiscal year.

Issues to Be Addressed
The Bank and other regional financial institutions in recent 
years have been facing increasingly uncertain prospects arising 
in the main from diminished loan yields caused by the 
continuing negative-interest policy and ever harsher 
competition; the contraction of the regional economy due to 
demographic decline and a decreasing number of business 
establishments; and technological innovation enabling market 
entries by other industries.

Fukui Prefecture will be the venue for the 73rd National 
Sports Festival to be held in September 2018 and will benefit 
from an improved traffic network after the opening of the 
Chubu-Jukan Expressway and the extension of the Hokuriku 
Shinkansen into the prefecture, which are expected to greatly 
change the business environment. Clearly, this will also bring a 
diversity of risks and opportunities for Fukui Bank.

The period under review, which also marks the final fiscal 
year of the medium-term management plan, “Create Chance 
Create Future,” caps the plan-defined period for creating 
opportunities for the future together with the region and 
together with customers. During this period, we proactively 
worked to aid regional revitalization and provided appropriate 
support based on customer viability assessments.

In the Bank’s region, this included efforts under our Plan for
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Regional Invigoration for each business area consistent with 
our regional comprehensive strategy, while continuing to 
strengthen cooperation with local public entities in Fukui 
Prefecture. For corporate customers we continued to promote 
the concept of business viability assessments, which refers to 
identifying customers’ business lines, business models, and 
management problems, and providing optimal problem 
solutions. Predicated on business viability assessments, we 
implemented proactive funding support and consulting for 
SMEs and micro businesses. For individual customers, in order 
to implement customer-centered business operations, we 
established our basic policies for customer-centered business 
operations and provided support for customers’ steady asset 
formation.

Under our medium-term management plan launched in 
April 2018, we will further strengthen the cooperation with local 
public bodies, business associations, and universities and 
other educational institutions, and together with the region help 
to stimulate economic activity. Through the implementation of 
customer viability assessments and appropriate, proactive risk 
taking based on their results, we will work for the advancement 
of the region and in so doing win new customers. We will also 
take steps to provide a full line-up of support and advisory 
offerings for our customers, strengthen group interaction, and 

serve customers with suitable consultation. Additionally, 
through optimized management resource allocation and 
reviews of operations, we will build organization structures 
marked by high productivity. Moreover, through personnel 
training and initiatives such as work style reforms, we will 
centralize the overall capabilities of Fukui Bank, and strive 
toward realizing our corporate philosophy.
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Liabilities:
Deposits (Notes 10 and 23) .................................................................... ¥ 2,324,100 ¥ 2,245,159 $ 21,875,941 
Call money and bills sold ........................................................................ − 5,609 −
Payables under repurchase agreements (Notes 10 and 23).................... 28,401 − 267,338 
Payables under securities lending transactions (Notes 10 and 23) ......... 47,457 84,324 446,705 
Borrowed money (Notes 10 and 23) ....................................................... 109,709 96,723 1,032,657 
Foreign exchange ................................................................................... 68 134 649 
Other liabilities (Note 27) ......................................................................... 14,989 24,345 141,090 
Provision for bonuses ............................................................................. 227 222 2,137 
Provision for directors’ bonuses ............................................................. 17 25 160 
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 28) ................................................. 5,217 5,191 49,112 
Provision for reimbursement of deposits ................................................ 341 318 3,216 
Provision for contingent losses ............................................................... 218 232 2,061 
Provision for losses on earthquake-proofing measures .......................... 785 785 7,394 
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) .............................................................. 1,060 140 9,980 
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation (Note 12) ................................ 2,563 2,635 24,131 
Acceptances and guarantees (Note 15) .................................................. 9,695 9,677 91,258 

Total liabilities ...................................................................................... ¥ 2,544,854 ¥ 2,475,527 $ 23,953,829 

Net assets (Note 20):
Capital stock .......................................................................................... ¥ 17,965 ¥ 17,965 $ 169,103 
Capital surplus ........................................................................................ 2,725 2,734 25,655 
Retained earnings................................................................................... 84,578 81,691 796,106 
Treasury shares ...................................................................................... (862) (1,090) (8,123)

Total shareholders’ equity ................................................................... 104,406 101,300 982,741 
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (Note 26) ................. 13,350 12,413 125,662 
Deferred gains (losses) on hedges .......................................................... (1) (27) (13)
Revaluation reserve for land (Note 12) .................................................... 5,785 5,949 54,460 
Accumulated adjustments for retirement benefits ................................... 5 23 55 

Total accumulated other comprehensive income ................................ 19,140 18,359 180,164 
Subscription rights to shares .................................................................. 187 205 1,768 
Non-controlling interests......................................................................... 4,575 4,226 43,071 

Total net assets ............................................................................... 128,310 124,092 1,207,744 

Total liabilities and net assets .......................................................... ¥ 2,673,165 ¥ 2,599,619 $ 25,161,573 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

March 31

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Assets:
Cash and due from banks (Notes 10 and 23) ......................................... ¥ 354,714 ¥ 296,821 $ 3,338,807 
Monetary claims bought (Note 23) .......................................................... 674 505 6,349 
Trading account securities (Note 23)....................................................... 504 709 4,747 
Money held in trust (Note 25) .................................................................. 6,400 6,404 60,242 
Securities (Notes 3, 4, 10, 15, 23 and 24) ............................................... 609,185 636,661 5,734,052 
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11 and 23) ..................... 1,617,855 1,591,806 15,228,306 
Foreign exchange (Note 9) ...................................................................... 10,774 9,629 101,420 
Other assets (Notes 10, 27, 31 and 32) ................................................... 51,819 40,565 487,759 
Tangible fixed assets (Notes 13 and 14) .................................................. 23,847 22,428 224,464 
Intangible fixed assets  ........................................................................... 228 374 2,153 
Deferred tax assets (Note 30) ................................................................. 842 876 7,929 
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (Note 15) ............ 9,695 9,677 91,258 
Allowance for loan losses (Note 23) ........................................................ (13,376) (16,842) (125,913)

Total assets ......................................................................................... ¥ 2,673,165 ¥ 2,599,619 $ 25,161,573 

Consolidated Financial Statements
The Fukui Bank, Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the years ended March 31

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Income:
Interest on loans and discounts .............................................................. ¥ 16,737 ¥ 17,346 $ 157,547 

Interest and dividends on securities ....................................................... 6,997 6,909 65,867 

Other interest income ............................................................................. 677 641 6,374 

Fees and commissions ........................................................................... 7,085 7,031 66,690 

Other operating income .......................................................................... 8,071 8,432 75,971 

Other income (Note 16)........................................................................... 4,586 4,379 43,174 

Total income ....................................................................................... 44,155 44,741 415,623 

Expenses:
Interest on deposits ................................................................................ 509 453 4,800 

Interest on borrowings ............................................................................ 822 640 7,746 

Other interest expenses.......................................................................... 103 83 978 

Fees and commissions payments .......................................................... 2,832 2,821 26,666 

Other operating expenses ...................................................................... 7,857 8,689 73,959 

General and administrative expenses (Note 17) ...................................... 23,238 22,082 218,737 

Other expenses (Note 18) ....................................................................... 2,587 2,288 24,352 

Total expenses .................................................................................... 37,952 37,059 357,238 

Income before income taxes 6,202 7,682 58,385 

Income taxes—current (Note 30) 1,482 1,671 13,955 

Income taxes—deferred (Note 30) 445 (289) 4,194 

Net income 4,274 6,299 40,236 

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 346 2,114 3,266 

Net income attributable to owners of parent ¥ 3,927 ¥ 4,184 $ 36,970 

Yen U.S. dollars

Net income per share of common stock (Note 35) ¥ 165.57 ¥ 175.94 $ 1.56

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended March 31

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Net income ............................................................................................... ¥ 4,274 ¥ 6,299 $ 40,236 

Other comprehensive income (Note 19) .................................................. 951 (5,543) 8,956 

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities ............................ 943 (5,573) 8,878 

Deferred gains (losses) on hedges ...................................................... 25 43 244 

Adjustments for retirement benefits .................................................... (17) (12) (166)

Comprehensive income........................................................................... 5,226 756 49,192 

Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent .................... 4,873 (1,358) 45,868 

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests ........ 353 2,115 3,324 
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016, to March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Sub-
scription 
rights to 
shares

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total net 
assets Capital 

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
shares

Total
sharehold-
ers’ equity

Valuation 
difference on 

available-
for-sale 

securities

Deferred 
gains or 

losses on 
hedges

Re-
valuation 

reserve for 
land

Accumulated 
adjustments 
for retirement 

benefits

Total ac-
cumulated 
other com-
prehensive 

income

Balance at the start of the period 17,965 2,744 78,960 (355) 99,315 17,987 (70) 5,937 36 23,891 167 14,512 137,886

Changes of items during the 
period

Dividends from surplus (1,441) (1,441) (1,441)

Reversal of revaluation reserve 
for land (12) (12) (12)

Net income attributable to 
owners of parent 4,184 4,184 4,184

Purchase of treasury shares (1,050) (1,050) (1,050)

Disposal of treasury shares (10) 315 305 305

Net changes of items other 
than shareholders’ equity — (5,574) 43 12 (12) (5,531) 37 (10,286) (15,780)

Total changes of items during the 
period — (10) 2,731 (735) 1,985 (5,574) 43 12 (12) (5,531) 37 (10,286) (13,794)

Balance at the end of the period 17,965 2,734 81,691 (1,090) 101,300 12,413 (27) 5,949 23 18,359 205 4,226 124,092

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Sub-
scription 
rights to 
shares

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total net 
assets Capital 

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
shares

Total
sharehold-
ers’ equity

Valuation 
difference on 

available-
for-sale 

securities

Deferred 
gains or 

losses on 
hedges

Re-
valuation 

reserve for 
land

Accumulated 
adjustments 
for retirement 

benefits

Total ac-
cumulated 
other com-
prehensive 

income

Balance at the start of the period 17,965 2,734 81,691 (1,090) 101,300 12,413 (27) 5,949 23 18,359 205 4,226 124,092

Changes of items during the 
period

Dividends from surplus (1,204) (1,204) (1,204)

Reversal of revaluation reserve 
for land 164 164 164

Net income attributable to 
owners of parent 3,927 3,927 3,927

Purchase of treasury shares (6) (6) (6)

Disposal of treasury shares (8) 233 224 224

Net changes of items other 
than shareholders’ equity — 937 25 (164) (17) 781 (17) 349 1,113

Total changes of items during the 
period — (8) 2,886 227 3,105 937 25 (164) (17) 781 (17) 349 4,218

Balance at the end of the period 17,965 2,725 84,578 (862) 104,406 13,350 (1) 5,785 5 19,140 187 4,575 128,310
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Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Sub-
scription 
rights to 
shares

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total net 
assets Capital 

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
shares

Total
sharehold-
ers’ equity

Valuation 
difference on 

available-
for-sale 

securities

Deferred 
gains or 

losses on 
hedges

Re-
valuation 

reserve for 
land

Accumulated 
adjustments 
for retirement 

benefits

Total ac-
cumulated 
other com-
prehensive 

income

Balance at the start of the period 169,103 25,738 768,932 (10,264) 953,509 116,842 (257) 56,005 221 172,811 1,931 39,783 1,168,034

Changes of items during the 
period

Dividends from surplus (11,341) (11,341) (11,341)

Reversal of revaluation reserve 
for land 1,545 1,545 1,545

Net income attributable to 
owners of parent 36,970 36,970 36,970

Purchase of treasury shares (60) (60) (60)

Disposal of treasury shares (83) 2,201 2,118 2,118

Net changes of items other 
than shareholders’ equity — 8,820 244 (1,545) (166) 7,353 (163) 3,288 10,478

Total changes of items during the 
period — (83) 27,174 2,141 29,232 8,820 244 (1,545) (166) 7,353 (163) 3,288 39,710

Balance at the end of the period 169,103 25,655 796,106 (8,123) 982,741 125,662 (13) 54,460 55 180,164 1,768 43,071 1,207,744

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income taxes .................................................................... ¥ 6,202 ¥ 7,682 $ 58,385 
Depreciation ............................................................................................. 938 835 8,837 
Impairment loss ........................................................................................ 112 15 1,055 
Increase (decrease) in allowance for loan losses ...................................... (3,465) 241 (32,620)
Increase (decrease) in provision for bonuses ............................................ 4 4 40
Increase (decrease) in provision for directors’ bonuses ............................ (8) — (80)
Increase (decrease) in liability for retirement benefits ................................ 25 (126) 243 
Increase (decrease) in provision for reimbursement of deposits ............... 23 (5) 217 
Increase (decrease) in provision for contingent losses .............................. (13) (31) (129)
Gain on fund management ....................................................................... (24,412) (24,897) (229,788)
Financing expenses .................................................................................. 1,436 1,177 13,524 
Loss (Gain) related to securities ................................................................ 1,042 438 9,813 
Loss (Gain) on money held in trust ............................................................ (62) (68) (589)
Foreign exchange losses (gains) ............................................................... 1,474 1,789 13,879 
Loss (Gain) on disposal of non-current assets .......................................... 12 (17) 117 
Net decrease (increase) in loans and bills discounted ............................... (26,048) (17,741) (245,185)
Net increase (decrease) in deposits .......................................................... 78,940 93,532 743,038 
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings) .. 12,986 60,665 122,235 
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding deposit paid to Bank of Japan) ... 1,160 (1,205) 10,920 
Net decrease (increase) in call loans ......................................................... (169) (127) (1,593)
Net increase (decrease) in call money ....................................................... 22,792 4,482 214,537 
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions .. (36,866) (4,467) (347,016)
Net decrease (increase) in trading account securities ............................... 204 (259) 1,928 
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchanges - assets ............................. (1,145) (1,416) (10,782)
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchanges - liabilities .......................... (65) (4) (614)
Net decrease (increase) in lease receivables and investment assets ........ 114 284 1,082 
Proceeds from fund management ............................................................ 24,443 25,562 230,083 
Payments for finance ................................................................................ (1,423) (1,197) (13,402)
Other ........................................................................................................ (28,280) (4,676) (266,190)

Subtotal ................................................................................................ 29,953 140,469 281,945 
Income taxes paid .................................................................................... (2,098) (676) (19,752)

Net cash provided by operating activities.............................................. 27,855 139,793 262,193 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of securities .............................................................................. (172,029) (148,473) (1,619,253)
Proceeds from sale of securities ............................................................... 133,982 86,763 1,261,128 
Proceeds from redemption of securities ................................................... 72,834 63,805 685,565 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets ............................................................. (3,097) (2,775) (29,157)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets ........................................................... (1) (17) (15)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets ............................................ 494 216 4,654 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ................................. 32,182 (481) 302,922 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash dividends paid ................................................................................. (1,204) (1,441) (11,341)
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interests ...................................... (3) (402) (36)
Purchase of treasury shares ..................................................................... (6) (1,050) (60) 
Sale of treasury shares ............................................................................. 224 305 2,117
Expenditure for refunds to non-controlling shareholders — (12,000) —

Net cash used in financing activities ..................................................... (990) (14,589) (9,320)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .......... 5 10 51 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .......................... 59,053 124,732 555,846 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .................................... 295,188 170,455 2,778,504 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 21) ............................... ¥ 354,241 ¥ 295,188 $ 3,334,350 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017

1. Basis of presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Fukui Bank, Ltd. (“the Bank”) and its consolidated subsidiaries have 

been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, its related accounting 
regulation and the Banking Act of Japan, and in conformity with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan 
(“Japanese GAAP”). Japanese GAAP are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a translation of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Bank 
which were prepared in accordance with Japanese GAAP and were filed with the applicable Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of 
Finance as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law. In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, 
certain restructuring and reclassifications have been made in the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to 
present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen. The translations of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars 
are included solely for the convenience of readers, using the prevailing exchange rate at March 31, 2018, which was ¥106.24 to U.S. 
$1.00. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts have been, could have been, or 
could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at this or any other rate of exchange.

2. Significant accounting policies and practices
(1) Scope of consolidation

Japanese accounting standards on consolidated financial statements require a company to consolidate any subsidiaries of which 
the company substantially controls the operations, even if it is not a majority owned subsidiary. Control is defined as the power to 
govern the decision making body of an enterprise.

( i ) Consolidated subsidiaries: Six companies
The Fukugin Lease Co., Ltd.
The Fukui Credit Guarantee Service Co., Ltd.
The Fukui Card Co., Ltd.
The Fukui Net Co., Ltd.
The Fukugin Business Service Co., Ltd.
Fukui Capital & Consulting Co., Ltd.

Change in the scope of consolidation
Fukui Preferred Capital Cayman Ltd. was a consolidated subsidiary of the Bank in the previous fiscal year. It was excluded 

from the scope of consolidation as its liquidation was completed on August 24, 2017.

( ii ) Unconsolidated subsidiaries: One Company
FUKUGIN Sixtiary Industrialization Fund Investment Business Limited Partnership

The unconsolidated subsidiary has been excluded from the scope of consolidation because its total assets and net income 
(in proportion to ownership), retained earnings (in proportion to ownership) and accumulated other comprehensive income (in 
proportion to ownership) are so immaterial that it does not hinder a rational judgment of the Group’s consolidated financial 
position and results of operations.

(2) Application of the equity method of accounting
Japanese accounting standards also require any unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates with financial and operating policies 

over which the Bank is able to exercise material influence to be accounted for by the equity method.
( i ) Unconsolidated subsidiaries accounted for by the equity method

None
( ii ) Affiliates accounted for by the equity method

None
(iii) Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates that are not accounted for by the equity method: Three Companies

FUKUGIN Sixtiary Industrialization Fund Investment Business Limited Partnership
Fukui Tourism Promotion Fund Investment Business Limited Partnership
Fukui Future Business Support Investment Limited Partnership

The unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates that are not accounted for by the equity method have also been excluded from 
the scope of application of the equity method because their net income (in proportion to ownership), retained earnings (in 
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proportion to ownership) and accumulated other comprehensive income (in proportion to ownership) are so immaterial that it 
does not hinder a rational judgment of the Group’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.

FUKUGIN Sixtiary Industrialization Fund Investment Business Limited Partnership was dissolved June 6, 2018, and liquidation 
was completed on July 24, 2018.

(3) The Balance sheet date of consolidated subsidiaries
( i ) The balance sheet dates of the consolidated subsidiaries are as follows:

March 31: Six companies

(4) Significant accounting policies
( i ) Trading account securities

Trading account securities are stated at fair value. Gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses from 
market value fluctuations are recognized as gains or losses in the period.

( ii ) Securities
A. Available-for-sale securities are in general stated at fair value (cost of sale calculated according to the moving-average method) 

indicated according to market price at the consolidated balance sheet date.
 Available-for-sale securities having no readily available market value are valued at cost using the moving-average method.
 Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities are reported as a component of net assets.
B. Securities constituting trust assets within money held in trust are valued using the same methods as those for the above-

mentioned A.
(iii) Derivatives

Derivatives are stated at fair value.
(iv) Depreciation and amortization methods

A. Tangible fixed assets (excluding lease assets)
Tangible fixed assets of the Bank are depreciated using the straight-line method.
Useful lives of major asset categories: 
Buildings: 3–50 years
Others: 2–20 years
Tangible fixed assets of consolidated subsidiaries are depreciated mainly using the declining-balance method based on assets’ 
estimated useful lives.

B. Intangible fixed assets (excluding lease assets)
Intangible fixed assets are amortized using the straight-line method. Software for internal use is amortized over the useful life 
specified by the Bank and consolidated subsidiaries, generally 5 years.

C. Lease assets
Lease assets included within tangible fixed assets related to finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership are 
depreciated over the lease term using the straight-line method. For lease assets with a guaranteed residual value stated in their 
lease agreements, the residual value is set at the guaranteed amount. Otherwise, the residual value is assumed to be zero.

( v ) Allowance for loan losses
The Bank records allowance for loan losses in accordance with internally established criteria for write-offs and allowance.
For claims against borrowers that have initiated special liquidation proceedings or other bankruptcy proceedings (“legal 

bankruptcy”) and against borrowers that are in substantially similar adverse condition (“virtual bankruptcy”), the allowance is 
provided based on the amount of claims, net of the write-off stated below, deducted by the expected amount of recoveries from 
collateral and guarantees.

For claims against borrowers that have not yet initiated bankruptcy proceedings, but are very likely to become bankrupt in the 
future (“possible bankruptcy”), the allowance is provided for the amount deemed necessary based on the overall assessment of 
the borrowers’ solvency, and reduced by the amount expected to be collected through the disposal of collateral or execution of 
guarantees from the claims.

For claims against large borrowers with certain outstanding balances that are classified as possible bankruptcy borrowers, 
restructured loan borrowers, or close-observation borrowers, the allowance is provided for the difference between the present 
value of expected future cash flows discounted at the contractual interest rate prior to the loan restructuring and the carrying 
amount of the claim, if future cash flows from collection of the principal and interest can be reasonably estimated (the “estimated 
cash flow method”).

For claims that are classified as other than those above, the allowance is provided based on the historical loan-loss ratios during 
a certain period.

All claims are assessed at branches and credit supervision departments based on the criteria for self-assessment of asset 
quality. The Risk Management Department, which is independent from the operating sections, monitors the results of such 
assessments.
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For claims against borrowers who are legally bankrupt or virtually bankrupt with collateral or guarantees, the write-off amount 
is determined as the unrecoverable portion, the claims due from borrowers deducted by the amounts expected to be collected 
through the disposal of collateral or through the execution of guarantees, and is directly deducted from the original balance of 
claims. The write-off amount was ¥10,486 million (U.S. $98,710 thousand) and ¥18,488 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2018 and 2017, respectively.

As for the consolidated subsidiaries, the allowance for loan losses for general claims is provided based on the historical loan-
loss ratios, and the allowance for loan losses for specific claims, such as possible uncollectible claims, is provided based on the 
estimate of unrecoverable amount for each claim.

(vi) Provision for bonuses
Provision for bonuses is provided for payment of bonuses to employees, in the amount of estimated bonuses that are attributable 

to the current fiscal year.
(vii) Provision for directors’ bonuses 

Provision for directors’ bonuses is provided for payment of bonuses to directors, in the amount of estimated bonuses that are 
attributable to the current fiscal year.

(viii) Provision for reimbursement of deposits
Provision for reimbursement of deposits is provided for in order to meet depositor requests for reimbursement on deposits 

already derecognized as liabilities, in the amount deemed necessary by estimating the losses corresponding to the expected 
requests for reimbursements in the future.

(ix) Provision for contingent losses
Provision for contingent losses is provided for contingent losses associated with claims due to the implementation of a 

responsibility-sharing system in the amount deemed necessary based on the estimated possible future losses.
( x ) Provision for losses on earthquake-proofing measures

Provision for losses on earthquake-proofing measures is provided for losses that arise associated with the earthquake proofing 
of business premises in the amounts on reasonable estimates of their future incidence.

(xi) Accounting for retirement benefits
In determining the retirement benefit obligations, the Bank adopts the benefit formula basis to attribute projected benefit 

obligations to the period of the year-end. Past service cost and actuarial gains or losses are expensed using the following 
methods:

Past service cost: Past service cost is recognized using the straight-line method, over 5 years within the employees’ average 
remaining service period at incurrence.

Actuarial gains or losses: Actuarial differences are expensed using the straight-line method, over 5 years within the employees’ 
average remaining service period, commencing from the next fiscal year of incurrence.

(xii) Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into yen at the rates prevailing at the consolidated balance sheet date.

(xiii) Accounting for lease transactions
Lessor side

Income arising from transactions of finance leases is recognized as sales and costs of goods sold when lease payments are 
collected.

(xiv) Hedge accounting
(a) Interest risk hedge

The Bank applies the exceptional accounting treatment for interest rate swaps used for hedging the interest rate risk arising 
from its financial instruments.

The assessment of hedge effectiveness is omitted because the significant terms of hedging instruments are consistent with 
those of the hedged items under the exceptional accounting treatment.

Under the exceptional accounting method, interest rate swaps are not remeasured at fair values, but the differential to be paid 
or received under the swap contracts is recognized as interest expenses or income.
(b) Currency-related risk hedging

The bank manages the foreign exchange risk arising from various assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies by 
using financial derivatives transactions.

The method of hedge accounting related to managing foreign exchange risk is the deferral hedge method as specified in 
“Treatment for Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency Transactions in Banking 
Industry” (JICPA Industry Auditing Committee Report No. 25, July 29, 2002, “Report No. 25”).

In evaluating the hedge effectiveness, hedging instruments such as currency swaps are used as a means of mitigating the 
foreign exchange risk arising from monetary claims and debts denominated in foreign currencies, which are the hedged items, in 
order to verify that the foreign currency positions of such hedging instruments are in amounts equivalent to the corresponding 
monetary claims and debts denominated in foreign currencies.
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(xv) Scope of cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows
The balance of cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows composes cash and due from the Bank 

of Japan.
(xvi) Income taxes

Income taxes comprise corporate, enterprise and inhabitant taxes. The Group recognizes tax effects of temporary differences 
between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. The asset and liability approach is used to 
recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences.

(xvii) Accounting for consumption taxes
The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries in Japan employ the tax exclusion method for consumption tax and local consumption 

taxes, meaning that transaction amounts and consumption tax amounts are treated separately for accounting purposes.
However, non-deductible consumption taxes for purchase of property, plant and equipment are recognized as expenses for the 

year of the purchase.

Standards and guidance not yet adopted
“Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” (ASBJ Statement No. 29, March 30, 2018)
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” (ASBJ Guidance No. 30, March 30, 2018)
(1) Overview
　�　The standard and guidance above provide comprehensive principles for revenue recognition. Under the standard and 

guidance, revenue is recognized by applying the following five steps:
Step 1: Identify contract with customers.
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

(2) Effective date
　　Effective from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022.
(3) Effects of the application of the standards
　�　The Bank is currently in the process of determining the effects of these new standards on the consolidated financial 

statements.

Additional information
Transactions of delivering of the company’s own stock to employees, etc. through trusts

The Bank introduced the “Trust-type Employee Share Ownership Incentive Plan” (the “Plan”) in order to provide the Bank’s 
employees with incentives to increase the Bank’s corporate value over the mid-to-long term, and to improve the benefits and 
welfare of the employees of the Bank by promoting asset formation of employees who buy and own shares of the Bank through 
the Employee Stock Holdings.

The Plan is an incentive plan for all employees participating in the “Fukui Bank Employee Stock Holdings” (the “Employee Stock 
Holdings”). For the implementation of the plan, the Bank has established the “Fukui Bank Stock Holding Partnership Exclusive 
Trust Account” (the “Trust”) at the trust bank.

(1) Overview of the transaction process
The “Trust” buys a considerable number of the Bank shares that are expected to be acquired by the Employee Stock Holdings 

during approximately five years. Subsequently, the Trust is to continuously transfer the Bank shares to the Employee Stock 
Holdings, and if any gains on sales of shares remain in the Trust account at the Trust’s termination, such residual assets are to be 
distributed to those who meet the requirements of eligible beneficiaries.

The Bank is required to guarantee the Trust’s debts to acquire the Bank shares. When a decline in the Bank’s share price 
increases losses on sales of shares in the Trust account, and there are any outstanding debts remaining in the Trust account at 
the Trust’s termination, the Bank will repay remaining debts in accordance with the guarantee contract.

(2) Shares held by the Trust
Shares held by the Trust are recorded as treasury stock in the net assets at their stated book value of the Trust account 

(excluding incidental cost amounts). The book value and the number of shares of treasury stock are ¥783 million (U.S. $7,374 
thousand) and 340 shares, respectively.

(3) Book value of borrowings stated in accordance with the gross method
¥709 million (U.S. $6,677 thousand)
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Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheets

3. Total amount of capital held in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Investments in capital ¥ 172 ¥ 19 $ 1,625

4. Securities lent under unsecured loan agreements (i.e. bond-lending transactions) are included as other securities under 
the heading of securities. Amounts are as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

¥ 3,017 ¥ 2,401 $ 28,407

5. Loans and bills discounted include loans to borrowers in bankruptcy and other delinquent loans as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy ¥ 698 ¥ 544 $ 6,575
Other delinquent loans 27,261 36,051 256,606

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy are loans whose interest receivable, excluding loans that have been written off (“nonaccrual 
loans”), is not recorded for the reasons as prescribed in Paragraph 1, Items 3 and 4 of Article 96 of “Enforcement Ordinance for the 
Corporation Tax Act” (Cabinet Order No. 97 of 1965). Such loans’ collection or repayment of principals or interests is not expected due 
to delinquency in payment of principals or interests for a substantial period or other causes.

Other delinquent loans are nonaccrual loans other than (i) loans in bankruptcy proceedings and (ii) loans for which the terms of 
interest payments have been extended in connection with the borrower’s business restructuring or to otherwise provide support.

6. Loans and bills discounted include delinquent loans past due three months or over as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Delinquent loans past due three months or more ¥ 133 ¥ 24 $ 1,261

Delinquent loans past due three months or more are those loans for which principal or interest payments are more than three months 
past due (calculated from the day following the contractual payment date), excluding loans classified as loans to borrowers in bankruptcy 
or other delinquent loans.

7. Loans and bills discounted include restructured loans as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Restructured loans ¥ 202 ¥ 202 $ 1,904

Restructured loans are those loans whose terms have been modified by reducing or waiving interest, granting interest payment 
extensions, granting principal repayment extensions, forgiving debt, or otherwise providing some arrangements favorable to the 
borrower in connection with the borrower’s business restructuring or to otherwise provide support, excluding those loans classified as 
loans to borrowers in bankruptcy, other delinquent loans, or delinquent loans past due three months or more.

8. Loans to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, delinquent loans past due three months or over, and restructured loans 
amount to the following total.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Total ¥ 28,296 ¥ 36,823 $ 266,346

The amounts of loans above in Notes 5 through 8 are stated before deduction of allowance for loan losses.
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9. Commercial bills
Bills discounted are accounted for as financing transactions in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 of the 

JICPA February 13, 2002. The Bank has the right to sell or pledge commercial bills and purchased foreign exchange bills without 
restrictions. The total face value of commercial bills and purchased foreign exchange bills obtained is as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
 U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

¥ 10,165 ¥ 8,992 $ 95,684

10. Pledged Assets are as follows

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Pledged assets

Securities ¥ 204,682 ¥ 212,106 $ 1,926,607

Other assets — 8,863 —

Total 204,682 220,969 1,926,607

Corresponding liabilities to assets pledged as collateral

Deposits 12,584 12,693 118,449

Call money and bills sold — 4,487 —

Payables under repurchase agreements 28,401 — 267,338

Payables under securities lending transactions 47,457 84,324 446,705

Borrowed money 109,000 95,800 1,025,979

In addition to the foregoing, the following assets have been pledged as collateral for operating transactions, such as foreign exchange 
contracts.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Securities ¥ 13,825 ¥ 28,228 $ 130,137
Other assets 24,054 5,554 226,418

Other assets include security deposits in the amount stated below.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Security deposits ¥ 217 ¥ 246 $ 2,049
Cash collateral for financial instruments etc. 988 516 9,308

11. Overdraft facility agreements and commitment lines of credit
Overdraft facility agreements and commitment lines of credit are agreements to extend a certain amount of credit at the customer’s 

request as long as the terms of the agreement have not been violated. The amounts of unused commitment balances under such 
agreements are as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Unused loan commitment lines ¥ 431,481 ¥ 401,155 $ 4,061,381
Loans for which the term of the agreement is one year or less 423,572 394,818 3,986,937

The balance of unused credit will not necessarily affect the future cash flows of the Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries because 
most of these agreements expire without credit being extended. Most of these agreements contain clauses allowing the Bank and the 
consolidated subsidiaries to reject requests for credit outright or reduce the credit limits due to changed financial circumstances, the 
need to secure claims, or other reasonable causes. Besides requesting collateral, such as real estate or securities, as necessary at the 
time of entering into the agreement, the Bank has also adopted other measures to keep its credit sound, such as periodically assessing 
the condition of customers’ businesses following the internal procedures and, if necessary, revising agreements.
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12. Revaluation reserve for land
Pursuant to the Law concerning Revaluation of Land (Law No. 34, promulgated March 31, 1998, the “Law”), the Bank revalued 

certain land used for banking operations. The tax-equivalent portion of this revaluation amount was recorded in liabilities under 
“deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation,” and the reminder under net assets as “revaluation reserve for land.”

Revaluation date
March 31, 1998
Item 3, Article 3, of the Law establishes the evaluation method as that prescribed by Article 2-4 of the Order for Enforcement of 

Law on Revaluation of Land (Enforcement Order No. 119, promulgated March 31, 1998), and the amount of land tax is calculated on 
the basis of the land tax amount specified under Article 16 of the Land-holding Tax Act, adjusted rationally in accordance with the 
basis of calculation announced officially by the Director General of the National Tax Administration Agency.

Total difference between market value of land for business use revalued in accordance with Article 10 of the Law and the total 
post-revaluation book value of land are as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
 U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

¥ 8,430 ¥ 8,474 $ 79,349

13. Accumulated depreciation on tangible fixed assets

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Accumulated depreciation ¥ 21,656 ¥ 22,093 $ 203,840

14. Fixed assets reduction entry

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Reduction entry ¥ 3,489 ¥ 3,771 $ 32,849
(Consolidated reduction entry in the current fiscal year) (—) (—) (—)

15. Acceptances and guarantees
The amounts of the bonds presented under “Securities” included guarantee obligations on corporate bonds that were placed 

through private securities offerings (Article 2, Paragraph 3 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act) are as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
 U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

¥ 585 ¥ 1,063 $ 5,506
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Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Operations

16. Other income includes the following.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Gains on sales of shares ¥ 993 ¥ 1,107 $ 9,351

17. General and administrative expenses include the following.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Salaries and allowances ¥ 9,970 ¥ 9,930 $ 93,848

18. Other expenses include the following.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Shares written off ¥ 675 ¥ 4 $ 6,359

Losses on sales of shares ¥ 989 ¥ 764 $ 9,317
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Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

19. Reclassification adjustments and tax effects related to other comprehensive income

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities
Changes for the year ¥ 295 ¥ (8,490) $ 2,777
Reclassification adjustments 1,081 433 10,177

Adjustment before tax effect 1,376 (8,057) 12,954

Tax effect (433) 2,483 (4,076)

Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities 943 (5,573) 8,878

Deferred gains (losses) on hedges

Changes for the year 37 62 350

Reclassification adjustments — — —

Adjustment before tax effect 37 62 350

Tax effect (11) (19) (106)

Deferred gains (losses) on hedges 25 43 244

Adjustments for retirement benefits

Changes for the year (7) 1 (70)

Reclassification adjustments (17) (20) (169)

Adjustment before tax effect (25) (18) (239)

Tax effect 7 5 73 

Adjustments for retirement benefits (17) (12) (166)

Total other comprehensive income 951 (5,543) 8,956
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Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

20. Changes in Net Assets
Under the Companies Law and the Banking Law of Japan, the following is provided: the entire amount of the issue price of shares 

is required to be accounted for as capital, although a company may, by a resolution of its board of directors, account for an amount 
not exceeding one-half of the issue price of the new shares as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus.

The Companies Law and the Banking Law provide that an amount equal to at least 20% of cash dividends and other cash 
appropriations shall be appropriated and set aside as a legal earnings reserve until the total amount of legal earnings reserve and 
additional paid-in capital equals 100% of common stock. The legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital may be used to 
eliminate or reduce a deficit by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting or may be capitalized by a resolution of the board of directors. 
On condition that the total amount of legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital remains equal to or exceeds 100% of 
common stock, they are available for distribution by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. Legal earnings reserve is included in 
retained earnings in the accompanying financial statements.

The maximum amount that the Bank can distribute as dividends is calculated based on the non-consolidated financial statements 
of the Bank in accordance with the Companies Law.

Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016, to March 31, 2017)

(1) Classes and total number of shares issued including treasury shares
(Thousands of shares)

Number of shares 
outstanding at the 
beginning of the 

fiscal year

Increase Decrease
Number of shares 
outstanding at the 

end of the fiscal year
Remarks

Number of shares issued and outstanding

Common shares 241,447 — — 241,447

Total 241,447 — — 241,447

Treasury shares

Common shares 1,571 4,560 1,404 4,727 (Notes 1, 2, 3)

Total 1,571 4,560 1,404 4,727
Notes: 
1. The number of treasury shares includes shares of the Bank held by the employee stock ownership trust (938 thousand shares at the beginning of the fiscal year and 4,119 

thousand shares at the end of the fiscal year).
2. The number of treasury shares increased by 4,549 thousand shares due to the acquisition of the shares of the Bank by the employee stock ownership trust and 11 thousand 

shares due to the acquisition of fractional share units.
3. The number of treasury shares decreased by 1,368 thousand shares due to a transfer of the shares of the Bank by the employee stock ownership trust to the Stockholding 

Association, 35 thousand shares due to the exercise of stock options, and 1 thousand shares due to requests for share purchases to supplement fractional share units.

(2) Subscription rights to shares

Category
Description of 

subscription rights 
to shares

Type of share 
underlying 

subscription 
rights to 
shares

Number of shares underlying 
subscription rights to shares (Shares)

Balance at 
the end of 
the fiscal 

year
(Millions of yen)

RemarksAt the 
beginning of 

the fiscal year
Increase Decrease

At the end 
of the fiscal 

year

The Fukui 
Bank

Subscription rights 
to shares as stock 

options
— 205

Total — 205
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(3) Dividends
( i ) Dividends paid in the fiscal year

(Resolution) Type of share

Aggregate 
amount of 
dividends

(Millions of yen)

Dividends
per share

(Yen)
Record date Effective date

May 13, 2016
Board of Directors

Common
shares 839 3.5 March 31, 2016 June 3, 2016

November 11, 2016
Board of Directors

Common
shares 602 2.5 September 30, 2016 December 1, 2016

Note: Total dividend amounts pursuant to the resolutions of the Board of Directors of May 13, 2016, do not include dividend amounts of ¥3 million paid to the employee stock 
ownership trust. Total dividend amounts pursuant to the resolutions of the Board of Directors of November 11, 2016 includes dividend amounts of ¥11 million paid to the 
employee stock ownership trust.

( ii ) Dividends with a record date during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, but whose effective date is after March 31, 2017, are as 
follows:

(Resolution) Type of share

Aggregate 
amount of 
dividends

(Millions of yen)

Dividend 
resources

Dividends
per share

(Yen)
Record date Effective date

May 12, 2017
Board of Directors

Common 
shares 602 Retained 

earnings 2.5 March 31, 2017 June 2, 2017

Note: The total dividend amount includes ¥10 million in dividends to the employee stock ownership trust.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)

(1) Classes and total number of shares issued including treasury shares
(Thousands of shares)

Number of shares 
outstanding at the 
beginning of the 

fiscal year

Increase Decrease
Number of shares 
outstanding at the 

end of the fiscal year
Remarks

Number of shares issued and outstanding

Common shares 241,447 — 217,302 24,145 (Notes 1, 2)

Total 241,447 — 217,302 24,145

Treasury shares

Common shares 4,727 6 4,359 374 (Notes 1, 3, 4, 5)

Total 4,727 6 4,359 374
Notes: 
1. On October 1, 2017, we implemented a consolidation of shares at a ratio of one share per 10 shares.
2. The number of shares issued and outstanding decreased by 217,302 thousand shares due to the share consolidation.
3.  The number of treasury shares includes shares of the Bank held by the employee stock ownership trust (4,119 thousand shares at the beginning of the fiscal year and 340 

thousand shares at the end of the fiscal year).
4.  The number of treasury shares increased by 4 thousand shares (3 thousand shares before the share consolidation; 0 thousand shares after the share consolidation) due to 

the acquisition of fractional share units and by 1 thousand shares due to the acquisition of allotted fractional share units resulting from the share consolidation.
5.  The number of treasury shares decreased by 388 thousand shares (352 thousand shares before the share consolidation and 36 thousand shares after the share 

consolidation) due to a transfer of the shares of the Bank by the employee stock ownership trust to the Stockholding Association; 293 thousand shares (before the share 
consolidation) due to the exercise of stock options; 0 thousand shares (before the share consolidation) due to requests for share purchases to supplement fractional share 
units; and 3,676 thousand shares due to the consolidation of shares.
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(2) Subscription rights to shares

Category
Description of 

subscription rights 
to shares

Type of 
share 

underlying 
subscription 

rights to 
shares

Number of shares underlying
subscription rights to shares (Shares)

Balance at the end of the 
fiscal year

RemarksAt the 
beginning 

of the fiscal 
year

Increase Decrease
At the 

end of the 
fiscal year

(Millions of 
yen)

(Thousands 
of U.S. 
dollars)

The Fukui 
Bank

Subscription rights 
to shares as stock 

options
— 187 1,768

Total — 187 1,768

(3) Dividends
( i ) Dividends paid in the current fiscal year

(Resolution) Type of share

Aggregate amount of dividends Dividends
per share

(Yen)
Record date Effective date

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

May 12, 2017
Board of Directors

Common
shares 602 5,667 2.5 March 31, 2017 June 2, 2017

November 10, 2017
Board of Directors

Common
shares 602 5,674 2.5 September 30, 2017 November 30, 2017

Note: Total dividend amounts pursuant to the resolutions of the Board of Directors of May 12, 2017, and November 10, 2017, respectively include dividend amounts of ¥10 
million and ¥9 million paid to the employee stock ownership trust.

( ii ) Dividends with a record date during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, but whose effective date is after March 31, 2018, are 
as follows:

(Resolution) Type of share

Aggregate amount of 
dividends Dividend 

resources

Dividends 
per share

(Yen)
Record date Effective date

(Millions of 
yen)

(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

May 11, 2018
Board of Directors

Common 
shares 602 5,674 Retained 

earnings 25 March 31, 2018 June 1, 2018

Note: The total dividend amount includes ¥8 million ($75 thousand) in dividends to the employee stock ownership trust. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

21. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
The following table shows reconciliation between cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows and cash 

and due from banks in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Cash and due from banks ¥ 354,714 ¥ 296,821 $ 3,338,807
Time deposits in other banks (278) (270) (2,626)

Other deposits (194) (1,363) (1,831)

Cash and cash equivalents 354,241 295,188 3,334,350

22. Lease Transactions
(1) Finance lease transactions

 Finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the lease assets to lessees
( i ) As a lessee

A. Description of lease assets
a. Tangible fixed assets

Vehicles
b. Intangible fixed assets

None

B. Depreciation method for lease assets
Refer to “(iv) Depreciation and amortization methods” of “(4). Significant accounting policies” in 2. Significant accounting 

policies and practices.

( ii ) As a lessor
This note is omitted, as the total amount is insignificant.

(2) Operating lease transactions
Total lease payments or receivables under non-cancelable operating lease transactions

( i ) As a lessee

Millions of yen
Thousand of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Within one year ¥ 0 ¥ — $ 7
Over one year 2 — 27

Total 3 — 34

( ii ) As a lessor
This note is omitted, as the total amount is insignificant.

(3) Sublease transactions
Amounts corresponding to sublease transactions stated on the consolidated sheet before deduction of interest were omitted due 

to insignificant.
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23. Financial Instruments
(1) Circumstances of financial instruments

( i ) Policies for engagement with financial instruments
The Group is engaged in a variety of financial services centered on the banking businesses, such as deposit operations, lending 

operations, and foreign exchange operations. Moreover, in order to acquire stable returns, the Bank utilizes the funds of securities 
on the investment side.

Furthermore, the Bank engages in derivative transactions in order to comply with customers’ requests on risk hedging related 
to foreign currency exchange as well as for use in asset liability management (ALM) for the appropriate management of the Bank’s 
own market risks, and as a measure for investing with partially mitigated risk. With regard to transactions for acquiring short-term 
income, the Bank determines certain position limits and loss limits. And the Bank has determined not to engage in derivative 
transactions of a complex structure and speculative nature.

The operations of a number of consolidated subsidiaries of the Bank include lease operations.
( ii ) Content and risks of financial instruments

Financial assets held by the Group, principally loans and bills discounted extended to domestic customers are exposed to risk 
associated with fluctuation in interest rates and credit risk. Securities, principally debt securities, shares, and investment trusts, 
held by the Group are exposed to credit risk and market risk. Moreover, call loans are exposed to credit risk.

Financial liabilities held by the Group, principally deposits, are exposed to market risk. Call money and borrowed money held 
by the Group are subject to market risk and liquidity risk of becoming unable to execute payment on due date, such as that the 
Bank cannot use the market under certain circumstances.

With regard to derivative transactions, the Group employs interest rate swaps in interest-related transactions, currency swaps, 
currency options, and currency forwards in currency-related transactions. The Group is exposed to market risk and credit risk. 
The hedge accounting is applied for certain currency swap transactions when they are employed in order to convert the currency 
of financing (Japanese yen denominated) into the currency of fund management (foreign currency denominated). The Group 
performs its hedge effective test through defining the financial claims and obligation as a hedged item and foreign currency swaps 
as a hedging instrument, and checking that the hedging instruments of foreign currency position equivalent to the hedged items 
exist.

( iii ) Risk management structure related to financial instruments
A. Credit risk management

Credit risk means the risk of suffering loss from a decrease or extermination of the value of assets (including off-balance 
items) of the Bank by the deterioration in the creditworthiness of the obligor.

For the Bank, credit risk is an unavoidable risk for the purposes of its business operations. The Bank aims to create its 
structure capable of controlling credit risk because the Bank is fully aware of the necessity of rapid responsive action to such 
risk. Specifically, the Bank has established the Credit concentration risk management standards and is working to identify and 
improve upon such risk in order to avoid credit concentration risks and create balanced credit portfolios.

With regard to credit risk measurement, the Bank assesses and analyzes its credit risk status according to credit rating, 
industry and region, and exercises risk-based quantitative management and control in accordance with the Risk capital 
system.

B. Market risk management
Market risk means the risk of financial loss to the Group through changes in income and value of assets and liabilities held, 

including off-balance items, due to fluctuations in various market risk factors, such as interest rates, exchange rates, equity 
prices.
a. Risk management

Market risk mainly consists of interest risk, foreign exchange risk and price fluctuation.
The Bank considers market risk as a constituent part of ALM. The Bank intends to maintain an appropriate balance of risk 

and return based on capital adequacy, profitability, trends of loan and deposit, the status of securities holdings.
Specifically, the management committee makes discussions concerning the status of comprehensive risk values, risk values 

of the market investment division, and quantitative interest rate risk of loans and deposits, as well as discussions of the 
securities investment plan, which enables the Bank to manage integrally the Bank’s overall risk and market risk. The market 
investment division establishes its position limits for entire securities and by type of security, and carries out market transaction 
flexibly within them.

Additionally, the market risk management unit (middle office) is organizationally segregated from the front office operations 
to maintain the segregation of duties, and conducts daily monitoring of the risk status.

The market risk management unit identifies quantitative market risk using Value at risk (VaR) for the securities, loans and 
deposits accounts of banking operation, and conduct risk management and analysis.
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b. Quantitative information concerning market risk
The bank uses mainly variance-covariance method for the calculation of market risk (VaR).
Securities account − Observation interval: Daily; Holding period: 1 year; Confidence level: 99.0%; Observation period: 5 

years
Loans and deposits accounts − Observation interval: Monthly; Holding period: 1 year; Confidence level: 99.0%; Observation 

period: 5 years
In the calculation of market risk (VaR) of loans and deposits accounts, core deposits are taken into account. Core deposits 

are measured by Standardized Measurement Approach.
As of March 31, 2018, the total amount of market risk (VaR) of the Bank amounted to ¥36,226 million/$340,982 thousand 

(¥36,170 million at the previous fiscal year-end).
In order to verify the reliability of its methods for measuring market risk, the Bank performs back testing by comparing VaR 

calculated for securities accounts for a one-day holding period with the day-to-day declines in market value.
The back testing conducted for the year ended March 31, 2018, displayed zero instances where actual losses exceeded VaR 

(similarly no instances were displayed in the previous fiscal year). The Bank therefore believes that the market risk is being 
captured by its market risk measurement methods with a sufficient level of accuracy.

However, VaR measures the market risk under a certain probability statistically calculated based on historical market 
fluctuations, and capturing risks may not be possible in the event of extraordinarily rapid changes in market conditions.

C. Liquidity risk management relevant to fundraising
Liquidity risk comprises “cash management risk”, the risk of suffering loss when necessary funds cannot be secured or the 

funds are forced to be procured only at an abnormally high interest rate, due to a period mismatch between investments and 
procurement, or due to unforeseeable fund outflows; “market liquidity risk”, the risk of suffering loss when transactions cannot 
take place due to market turmoil or can only be conducted at an abnormally inferior price; and “settlement risk”, the risk of 
suffering loss when funds or assets cannot be received as planned through settlements with counterparties.

Liquidity risk refers to those 3 comprehensive risks, cash management risk, market liquidity risk, and settlement risk. The 
Bank considers controlling of cash management risk the important management issue since market liquidity risk and settlement 
risk belong ultimately to cash management risk.

The Bank conducts appropriate cash management and reporting to the executive officer in charge of the comprehensive 
risk management division through management of the fund procurement structure, funding gaps between investments and 
procurement, and liquidity reserves for Japanese yen and foreign denominated funds.

Specifically, the Bank has defined categories rated as “normal,” “alert,” and “crisis” according to the status of cash 
management and has determined subsets of management methods, reporting frameworks, and approval modes for each 
category, managed by the organizationally independent front office, back office, and middle office with monitoring mutually.

(iv) Supplementary explanation concerning fair value of financial instruments
Fair Value of financial instruments is based on quoted prices in markets. If a quoted price is not available, a reasonably calculated 

amount is used as fair value. Calculation of such amounts involves certain assumptions and may vary when different assumptions 
are employed. Moreover, the notional amount of the derivative transactions referred to in the notes on “Derivative transactions” 
does not reflect the market risks associated with the noted derivative transactions.
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(2) Fair values of financial instruments
The carrying amounts on the consolidated balance sheets and fair values of financial instruments as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, 

as well as the differences between these values are presented below. The financial instruments deemed immaterial, however, is 
omitted. The fair values of unlisted shares are excluded from the following table, because such fair values are extremely difficult to 
be determined (See Note 2).

Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)
(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and due from banks 296,821 296,821 —

(2) Trading account securities

 Securities for trading purposes 709 709 —

(3) Securities

 Available-for-sale securities 635,655 635,655 —

(4) Loans and bills discounted 1,591,806

 Allowance for loan losses*1 (16,477)

1,575,329 1,607,808 32,479

Total assets 2,508,515 2,540,995 32,479

(1) Deposits 2,245,159 2,245,252 92

(2) Payables under repurchase agreements — — —

(3) Payables under securities lending transactions 84,324 84,324 —

(4) Borrowed money 96,723 96,723 —

Total liabilities 2,426,207 2,426,300 92

Derivative transactions*2

Not qualifying for hedge accounting 129 129 —

Qualifying for hedge accounting 335 335 —

Total derivative transactions 465 465 —
*1: A general allowance for loan losses and specific allowances for loan losses are deducted from loans and bills discounted.
*2: Derivatives transactions recorded in other assets and other liabilities are presented collectively.
 Receivables and payables arising from derivatives transactions are presented on a net basis. Negative figures were presented as a liability balance after netting. 
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Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and due from banks 354,714 354,714 —

(2) Trading account securities

 Securities for trading purposes 504 504 —

(3) Securities

 Available-for-sale securities 607,369 607,369 —

(4) Loans and bills discounted 1,617,855

 Allowance for loan losses*1 (13,274)

1,604,580 1,635,615 31,034

Total assets 2,567,169 2,598,203 31,034

(1) Deposits 2,324,100 2,324,218 118

(2) Payables under repurchase agreements 28,401 28,401 —

(3) Payables under securities lending transactions 47,457 47,457 —

(4) Borrowed money 109,709 109,709 —

Total liabilities 2,509,669 2,509,787 118

Derivative transactions*2

Not qualifying for hedge accounting 137 137 —

Qualifying for hedge accounting 666 666 —

Total derivative transactions 803 803 —
*1: A general allowance for loan losses and specific allowances for loan losses are deducted from loans and bills discounted.
*2: Derivatives transactions recorded in other assets and other liabilities are presented collectively.
 Receivables and payables arising from derivatives transactions are presented on a net basis.

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks 3,338,807 3,338,807 —
(2) Trading account securities

 Securities for trading purposes 4,747 4,747 —

(3) Securities

 Available-for-sale securities 5,716,953 5,716,953 —

(4) Loans and bills discounted 15,228,306

 Allowance for loan losses*1 (124,946)

15,103,360 15,395,479 292,119

Total assets 24,163,867 24,455,986 292,119

(1) Deposits 21,875,941 21,877,058 1,117

(2) Payables under repurchase agreements 267,338 267,338 —

(3) Payables under securities lending transactions 446,705 446,705 —

(4) Borrowed money 1,032,657 1,032,657 —

Total liabilities 23,622,641 23,623,758 1,117

Derivative transactions*2

Not qualifying for hedge accounting 1,294 1,294 —

Qualifying for hedge accounting 6,270 6,270 —

Total derivative transactions 7,564 7,564 —
*1: A general allowance for loan losses and specific allowances for loan losses are deducted from loans and bills discounted.
*2: Derivatives transactions recorded in other assets and other liabilities are presented collectively.
 Receivables and payables arising from derivatives transactions are presented on a net basis.
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Note 1: Method of calculation of fair values of financial instruments

Assets
(1) Cash and due from banks

The fair values of cash and due to banks without maturities are stated at their carrying amounts, because the carrying amounts 
of those instruments approximate the fair values. The fair values of cash and due to banks with maturities are stated at their 
carrying amounts, because most of such transactions have short contractual terms (six months or less) and the carrying amounts 
of those instruments approximate the fair values.

The fair values of derivative-embedded instruments stated the values reflecting the fair value estimates of derivatives indicated 
by the respective financial institutions.

(2) Trading account securities
The fair values of bonds and other securities held for dealing purposes are stated at quoted market prices or dealer/broker 

quoted prices.
(3) Securities

The fair values of stocks are stated at quoted market prices or dealer/broker quoted prices. The fair values of investment trusts 
are stated at published reference prices. The fair values of privately placed bonds guaranteed by the Bank are calculated based 
on the present value of expected future cash flows of principal redemptions and interest repayments discounted at the market 
interest rate.

Notes regarding securities by their holding purpose are presented under the “Securities” section.
(4) Loans and bills discounted

The fair values of loans to legally bankrupt obligors, substantially bankrupt obligors or obligors who are in danger of bankruptcy 
are essentially equivalent to the book value deducted by the allowance for possible loan losses as of the consolidated balance 
sheet date because their estimated collectible amount is based on either the present value of estimated future cash flows or the 
expected amounts recoverable from the disposal of collateral and/or under guarantees.

The fair values of loans without maturities (as the amount of credit is limited to the value of the collateral or due to some other 
special characteristics) are stated at their carrying amounts because their fair values are deemed to approximate the carrying 
amounts in consideration of the expected repayment periods and the interest terms.

The fair values of loans other than mentioned above are stated at present values of expected future cash flows of principals and 
interests discounted at the market interest rate.

Liabilities
(1) Deposits

The fair values of demand deposits are determined at the amount that would have to be paid on demand at the consolidated 
balance sheet date (book value). The fair values of time deposits are determined based on the present value of future cash flows 
by certain time periods discounted at the interest rate required for newly originated deposits.

(2) Payables under repurchase agreements
The fair values of payables under repurchase agreements with short contractual terms (no more than six months) are stated at 

their carrying amounts, because the carrying amounts of those instruments approximate the fair values.
(3) Payables under securities lending transactions

The fair values of payables under securities lending transactions with short contractual terms (no more than six months) are 
stated at their carrying amounts, because the carrying amounts of those instruments approximate the fair values.

(4) Borrowed money
The fair values of borrowed money with short contractual terms (no more than six months) are stated at their carrying amounts, 

because the carrying amounts of those instruments approximate the fair values. 
The fair values of borrowed money with fixed interest rates are determined based on the present value of the total amount of 

principal and interest by certain time periods discounted at the interest rate that would be presumably applied for similar 
borrowings.
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Derivative transactions
Notes regarding fair values of derivatives are presented under the “Derivatives” section.

Note 2: The amounts of financial instruments on the consolidated balance sheets for which fair values are not reliably 
determinable are as stated below, and such amounts are not included in the fair value information for financial 
instruments presented in “Assets, (4) Available-for-sale Securities”.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Unlisted stocks*1, *2 ¥ 1,461 ¥ 962 $ 13,756

Investments in partnerships *3 355 43 3,343

Total 1,816 1,006 17,099
*1: Unlisted stocks are excluded from fair value disclosure because there are no quoted market prices, and therefore, there is no reliable measure of fair value.
*2: During the previous fiscal year, an impairment loss of ¥4 million was recognized against unlisted stocks.

During the current fiscal year, an impairment loss of ¥0 million ($0 thousand) was recognized against unlisted stocks.
*3: Investments in certain partnerships do not incorporate market value information because of the extreme difficulty in ascertaining the market value of some partnerships’ 

assets (e.g. where the partnership is unlisted).

Note 3: Redemption schedule of monetary claims and securities with maturity after March 31, 2018 and 2017
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Within one 
year

Over one year 
to three years

Over three 
years to five 

years

Over five 
years to seven 

years

Over seven 
years to ten 

years

Over ten 
years

Due from banks 264,297 — — — — —

Securities 70,753 205,055 156,421 61,888 47,964 36,336

Available-for-sale securities with 
maturities 70,753 205,055 156,421 61,888 47,964 36,336

Government bonds 17,000 79,000 38,400 6,000 — 18,000

Local government bonds 6,503 23,424 31,044 7,434 9,650 —

Short-term corporate bonds — — — — — —

Corporate bonds 38,567 62,995 29,689 15,401 905 18,336

Loans and bills discounted* 437,090 312,589 215,772 139,802 132,172 298,246

Total 772,141 517,644 372,193 201,690 180,136 334,583
* The balances exclude loans and bills discounted for debtors who are legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt or likely to become bankrupt that are not expected to be collected, 

amounting to ¥36,341 million and those without maturity, amounting to ¥19,791 million.
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Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Within one 
year

Over one year 
to three years

Over three 
years to five 

years

Over five 
years to seven 

years

Over seven 
years to ten 

years

Over ten 
years

Due from banks 318,841 — — — — —

Securities 77,064 208,509 114,569 45,362 48,346 53,932

Available-for-sale securities with 
maturities 77,064 208,509 114,569 45,362 48,346 53,932

Government bonds 28,500 77,900 17,000 — — 18,000

Local government bonds 8,778 36,486 16,567 3,821 — —

Short-term corporate bonds — — — — — —

Corporate bonds 28,918 50,261 33,463 19,700 1,000 31,012

Loans and bills discounted* 426,567 328,527 231,296 136,058 135,441 312,816

Total 822,473 537,036 345,866 181,420 183,787 366,748
* The balances exclude loans and bills discounted for debtors who are legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt or likely to become bankrupt that are not expected to be collected, 

amounting to ¥26,893 million and those without maturity, amounting to ¥20,253 million.

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Within one 
year

Over one year 
to three years

Over three 
years to five 

years

Over five 
years to seven 

years

Over seven 
years to ten 

years

Over ten 
years

Due from banks 3,001,141 — — — — —

Securities 725,378 1,962,626 1,078,402 426,977 455,068 507,646

Available-for-sale securities with 
maturities 725,378 1,962,626 1,078,402 426,977 455,068 507,646

Government bonds 268,261 733,245 160,015 — — 169,428

Local government bonds 82,629 343,430 155,942 35,973 — —

Short-term corporate bonds — — — — — —

Corporate bonds 272,201 473,093 314,981 185,429 9,413 291,908

Loans and bills discounted* 4,015,132 3,092,315 2,177,114 1,280,669 1,274,864 2,944,433

Total 7,741,651 5,054,941 3,255,516 1,707,646 1,729,932 3,452,079
* The balances exclude loans and bills discounted for debtors who are legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt or likely to become bankrupt that are not expected to be collected, 

amounting to $253,141 thousand and those without maturity, amounting to $190,638 thousand.
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Note 4: Repayment schedule of interest-bearing liabilities after March 31, 2018 and 2017
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Within one 
year

Over one year 
to three years

Over three 
years to five 

years

Over five 
years to seven 

years

Over seven 
years to ten 

years

Over ten 
years

(1) Deposits 2,135,716 91,870 14,834 804 1,934 —
(2) Payables under repurchase

agreements — — — — — —

(3) Payables under securities lending 
transactions 84,324 — — — — —

(4) Borrowed money 96,018 433 270 — — —

Total 2,316,060 92,303 15,104 804 1,934 —
* The balance of demand deposits is included in “Within one year.”

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Within one 
year

Over one year 
to three years

Over three 
years to five 

years

Over five 
years to seven 

years

Over seven 
years to ten 

years

Over ten 
years

(1) Deposits 2,221,549 85,704 14,025 860 1,960 —
(2) Payables under repurchase

agreements 28,401 — — — — —

(3) Payables under securities lending 
transactions 47,457 — — — — —

(4) Borrowed money 109,218 436 54 — — —

Total 2,406,627 86,141 14,079 860 1,960 —
* The balance of demand deposits is included in “Within one year.”

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Within one 
year

Over one year 
to three years

Over three 
years to five 

years

Over five 
years to seven 

years

Over seven 
years to ten 

years

Over ten 
years

(1) Deposits 20,910,665 806,707 132,014 8,102 18,453 —
(2) Payables under repurchase

agreements 267,338 — — — — —

(3) Payables under securities lending 
transactions 446,705 — — — — —

(4) Borrowed money 1,028,034 4,110 514 — — —

Total 22,652,742 810,817 132,528 8,102 18,453 —
* The balance of demand deposits is included in “Within one year.”
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24. Securities
*1  In addition to the “Securities” presented in the consolidated balance sheets, the following information includes loan-

backed trust deeds reported under “Trading account securities.”
*2 Information on “Shares in subsidiaries and affiliates” is stated in the notes to the financial statements.

(1) Securities for trading purposes

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Valuation difference reflected on the statements of operations ¥ (5) ¥ (1) $ (53)

(2) Securities-held-to-maturity
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None

(3) Available-for-sale securities
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Type Carrying amount Acquisition cost Difference

Securities for which carrying amount 
exceeds acquisition cost

Stocks 20,348 10,223 10,124

Bonds 375,095 367,834 7,261

Government bonds 158,495 154,210 4,284
Local government 
bonds 76,460 74,213 2,247

Short-term 
corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 140,139 139,409 729

Others 106,334 103,635 2,699

Foreign securities 84,573 83,266 1,307

Subtotal 501,778 481,692 20,085

Securities for which carrying amount 
does not exceed acquisition cost

Stocks 4,476 5,053 (576)

Bonds 35,094 35,587 (493)

Government bonds 4,742 4,918 (176)
Local government 
bonds 3,960 4,000 (39)

Short-term 
corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 26,392 26,669 (277)

Others 94,306 95,943 (1,637)

Foreign securities 53,639 54,153 (514)

Subtotal 133,877 136,584 (2,707)

Total 635,655 618,277 17,378
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Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Type Carrying amount Acquisition cost Difference

Securities for which carrying amount 
exceeds acquisition cost

Stocks 24,140 9,300 14,839 

Bonds 336,429 331,070 5,358 

Government bonds 140,218 136,935 3,283 
Local government 
bonds 67,339 65,779 1,560 

Short-term 
corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 128,871 128,356 514 

Others 86,611 84,749 1,862 

Foreign securities 72,144 70,904 1,239 

Subtotal 447,180 425,120 22,059 

Securities for which carrying amount 
does not exceed acquisition cost

Stocks 4,265 4,516 (251)

Bonds 40,923 41,054 (130)

Government bonds 4,890 4,922 (32)
Local government 
bonds — — —

Short-term 
corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 36,033 36,131 (98)

Others 114,999 117,922 (2,922)

Foreign securities 67,861 68,722 (861)

Subtotal 160,188 163,493 (3,305)

Total 607,369 588,614 18,754

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Type Carrying amount Acquisition cost Difference

Securities for which carrying amount 
exceeds acquisition cost

Stocks 227,222 87,543 139,679

Bonds 3,166,690 3,116,255 50,435

Government bonds 1,319,829 1,288,925 30,904
Local government 
bonds 633,843 619,158 14,685

Short-term 
corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 1,213,018 1,208,172 4,846

Others 815,243 797,716 17,527

Foreign securities 679,070 667,400 11,670

Subtotal 4,209,155 4,001,514 207,641

Securities for which carrying amount 
does not exceed acquisition cost

Stocks 40,146 42,516 (2,370)

Bonds 385,198 386,430 (1,232)

Government bonds 46,032 46,335 (303)
Local government 
bonds — — —

Short-term 
corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 339,166 340,095 (929)

Others 1,082,454 1,109,965 (27,511)

Foreign securities 638,754 646,865 (8,111)

Subtotal 1,507,798 1,538,911 (31,113)

Total 5,716,953 5,540,425 176,528
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(4) Securities-held-to-maturity sold in the current fiscal year
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016, to March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
None

(5) Available-for-sale securities sold in the current fiscal year
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016, to March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Type Amount sold Total gain on sales Total loss on sales

Stocks 8,327 955 639

Bonds 7,674 399 —

Government bonds 7,571 398 —
Local government bonds — — —
Short-term corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 103 1 —

Others 75,213 1,017 2,167

Foreign securities 59,399 441 1,557

Total 91,215 2,373 2,806

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Type Amount sold Total gain on sales Total loss on sales

Stocks 4,732 626 155 

Bonds 14,959 75 68 

Government bonds 3,022 10 —
Local government bonds 9,937 64 27 
Short-term corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 2,000 1 40 

Others 98,459 1,375 2,220 

Foreign securities 79,173 786 1,114 

Total 118,151 2,077 2,444 

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Type Amount sold Total gain on sales Total loss on sales

Stocks 44,542 5,898 1,467

Bonds 140,807 714 640 

Government bonds 28,447 95 —
Local government bonds 93,533 604 255
Short-term corporate bonds — — —

Corporate bonds 18,827 15 385

Others 926,766 12,943 20,901

Foreign securities 745,228 7,399 10,486

Total 1,112,115 19,555 23,008
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(6) Securities that changed their holding purpose
None

(7) Impairment of securities
Securities other than trading securities, and whose fair values are not reliably determinable, are treated as impaired when their fair 

values have decline significantly from the acquisition cost and it is deemed unlikely that the acquisition cost will be recovered. Such 
securities are recorded at their fair values in the consolidated balance sheets. The difference between the acquisition cost and the 
fair values is recognized as an impairment loss.

No impairment losses were recognized in the previous fiscal year.
Impairment losses recognized were ¥675 million ($6,359 thousand; all related to “Stocks”) in the current fiscal year.
The impairment of securities is recognized for all securities when the market value of the securities has fallen by 50% or more 

compared with the acquisition cost, and for other securities when the market value of the securities has fallen by 30% or more 
compared with the acquisition cost and it is deemed unlikely to recover to the acquisition cost in consideration of past reduction rates 
over a specific period of time and financial conditions of issuing companies.



34

25. Money held in trust
(1) Money held in trust for trading purposes

Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)
None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None

(2) Money held in trust held to maturity
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None

(3) Other money held in trust (other than those for trading purposes or held to maturity)
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Carrying
amount

Acquisition
cost Difference Positive

difference
Negative 
difference

Other money held in trust 6,404 6,404 — — —
Note: The amount of “Difference” is the net of “Positive Difference” and “Negative Difference.”

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Carrying
amount

Acquisition
cost Difference Positive

difference
Negative 
difference

Other money held in trust 6,400 6,400 — — —
Note: The amount of “Difference” is the net of “Positive Difference” and “Negative Difference.”

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Carrying
amount

Acquisition
cost Difference Positive

difference
Negative 
difference

Other money held in trust 60,241 60,241 — — —
Note: The amount of “Difference” is the net of “Positive Difference” and “Negative Difference.”

26. Valuation differences on available-for-sale securities
The following table shows components of Valuation differences on available-for-sale securities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Valuation differences ¥ 18,754 ¥ 17,378 $ 176,528
Securities 18,754 17,378 176,528

Deferred tax liability (5,384) (4,951) (50,678)

Valuation differences on available-for-sale securities (before adjustment for 
non-controlling interests) 13,370 12,427 125,850

Non-controlling interests (19) (13) (188) 

Valuation differences on available-for-sale securities 13,350 12,413 125,662
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27. Derivatives
(1) Derivative transactions not qualifying for hedge accounting

Derivative transactions not qualifying for hedge accounting are grouped by the type of underlying transactions. The notional 
amounts (or the amount equivalent to the principal specified in the contracts), the fair values, and the valuation differences as of the 
consolidated balance sheet date, as well as the methods for determining such fair values are presented below. The notional amounts 
do not reflect the market risk associated with the derivatives.

( i ) Interest-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Category Type Notional amounts 
(total)

Notional amounts 
(over one year) Fair value Valuation

difference

Listed

Interest futures

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Interest options

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

OTC

Forward rate agreements

Sold − − − −
Purchased − − − −

Interest rate swaps

Receivable fixed, payable floating 700 − 2 2

Receivable floating, payable fixed 700 − (1) (1)

Interest options

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Others

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Total − − 1 1
Notes:
1. The transactions above are stated at their fair values and valuation differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.
2. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None
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( ii ) Currency-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Category Type Notional amounts 
(total)

Notional amounts 
(over one year) Fair value Valuation

difference

Listed

Currency futures

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Currency options

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

OTC

Currency swaps − − − − 

Forward exchange contracts

Sold 14,079 1,946 (224) (224)

Purchased 8,449 − 353 353

Currency options

Sold 66,475 43,427 (2,402) 875

Purchased 66,475 43,427 2,402 (321)

Others

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Total − − 128 682
Notes:
1. The transactions above are stated at their fair values and valuation differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.
2. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Category Type Notional amounts 
(total)

Notional amounts 
(over one year) Fair value Valuation

difference

Listed

Currency futures

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Currency options

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

OTC

Currency swaps − − − − 

Forward exchange contracts

Sold 11,815 956 148 148

Purchased 10,739 − (11) (11)

Currency options

Sold 67,482 44,590 (2,688) 787

Purchased 67,482 44,590 2,688 (181)

Others

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Total − − 137 743
Notes:
1. The transactions above are stated at their fair values and valuation differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.
2. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.
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Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Category Type Notional amounts 
(total)

Notional amounts 
(over one year) Fair value Valuation

difference

Listed

Currency futures

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Currency options

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

OTC

Currency swaps − − − − 

Forward exchange contracts  

Sold 111,215 9,000 1,399 1,399

Purchased 101,086 − (105) (105)

Currency options   

Sold 635,200 419,716 (25,310) 7,410

Purchased 635,200 419,716 25,310 (1,704)

Others

Sold − − − −

Purchased − − − −

Total − − 1,294 7,000
Notes:
1. The transactions above are stated at their fair values and valuation differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.
2. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.

 
(iii) Stock-related transactions

Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)
None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None

(iv) Bond-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None

(v) Commodity-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None

(vi) Credit derivative transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None
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(2) Derivative transactions qualifying for hedge accounting
Derivative transactions qualifying for hedge accounting are grouped by the type of underlying transactions. The notional amounts 

(or the amount equivalent to the principal specified in the contracts) and the fair values as of the consolidated balance sheet date, as 
well as the methods for determining such fair values are presented below. The notional amounts do not reflect the market risk 
associated with the derivatives.

( i ) Interest-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge
accounting 

method
Type Major hedged item Notional amounts 

(total)
Notional amounts 

(over one year) Fair value

Deferral 
method

Interest rate swaps −

Receivable fixed, 
payable floating − − −

Receivable floating, 
payable fixed − − −

Interest futures − − − −

Interest options − − − −

Others − − − −

Exceptional 
treatment
for interest 
rate swap

Interest rate swaps Foreign denominated loans 
and bills discounted

Receivable fixed, 
payable floating − − (Note 2)

Receivable floating, 
payable fixed 448 448

Total − − − −
Notes:
1. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.
2. Interest rate swaps to which exceptional treatment is applied are accounted for as part of the loans and bills discounted being hedged; therefore, their fair values are 

included in the fair value of loans and bills discounted presented under “Financial Instruments.”

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None
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( ii ) Currency-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge
accounting 

method
Type Major hedged item Notional amounts 

(total)
Notional amounts 

(over one year) Fair value

Deferral 
method Currency swaps Foreign-currency 

denominated securities 5,609 5,609 335

Total − − − 335
Notes:
1. Deferred hedge accounting stipulated in Report No. 25 is applied, in principle.
2. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Hedge
accounting 

method
Type Major hedged item Notional amounts 

(total)
Notional amounts 

(over one year) Fair value

Deferral 
method Currency swaps Foreign-currency 

denominated securities 5,312 − 666

Total − − − 666

Notes:
1. Deferred hedge accounting stipulated in Report No. 25 is applied, in principle.
2. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Hedge
accounting 

method
Type Major hedged item Notional amounts 

(total)
Notional amounts 

(over one year) Fair value

Deferral 
method Currency swaps Foreign-currency 

denominated securities 50,000 − 6,270

Total − − − 6,270

Notes:
1. Deferred hedge accounting stipulated in Report No. 25 is applied, in principle.
2. The fair values are calculated using the net present value method, etc.

(iii) Stock-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None

(iv) Bond-related transactions
Previous fiscal year (March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (March 31, 2018)
None
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28. Retirement and pension plans
(1) Outline of the retirement benefit plans

Dated April 1, 2005, the Bank obtained the permission to dissolve the corporate pension plan of the Bank from the Minister of 
Health, Labour and Welfare and received approval for the terms and conditions of a corporate defined contribution pension plan, and 
transferred a part of the lump-sum benefit program of the Bank and the corporate pension plan to a defined contribution pension 
plan. As a result, the retirement benefits system of the Bank has a dual structure consisting of a lump-sum benefit program and a 
defined contribution pension plan.

Notably, the Bank may pay additional retirement benefit payments with premium at the retirement, etc., of employees.
Additionally, a number of consolidated subsidiaries are members to the Smaller Enterprise Retirement Allowance Mutual Aid 

Program.

(2) Defined benefit plans
( i ) Reconciliation of retirement benefit obligations

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Retirement benefit obligations (opening balance) ¥ 5,191 ¥ 5,318 $ 48,870
Service cost-benefits earned during the fiscal year 313 318 2,950

Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 25 26 244

Actuarial differences 7 (1) 69

Retirement benefits paid (320) (470) (3,021)

Past service cost − − −

Other − − −

Retirement benefit obligations (closing balance) ¥ 5,217 ¥ 5,191 $ 49,112

( ii ) Reconciliation between closing balances of retirement benefit obligations and liabilities and assets for retirement benefits recorded 
in the consolidated balance sheet

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Net defined benefit liability ¥ 5,217 ¥ 5,191 $ 49,112
Net defined benefit asset − − −

Net of liabilities and assets recorded in the consolidated balance sheet ¥ 5,217 ¥ 5,191 $ 49,112

(iii) Breakdown of retirement benefit expenses

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Service cost-benefits earned during the fiscal year ¥ 313 ¥ 318 $ 2,950
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 25 26 244

Expected return on plan assets − − −

Amortization of actuarial differences (17) (20) (168)

Amortization of past service cost − − −

Other − − −

Retirement benefit expenses for defined benefit obligations ¥ 321 ¥ 324 $ 3,026



41

(iv) Adjustments for retirement benefits
Details of adjustments for retirement benefits (before tax effects) are as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Past service cost ¥ − ¥ − $ −
Actuarial differences (25) (18) (244)

Other − − −

Total ¥ (25) ¥ (18) $ (244)

(v) Accumulated adjustments for retirement benefits
The breakdown of accumulated adjustments for retirement benefits (before tax effects) is as follows.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Unrecognized past service cost ¥ − ¥ − $ −
Unrecognized actuarial differences (8) (33) (78)

Other − − −

Total ¥ (8) ¥ (33) $ (78)

 
(vi) Assumptions used

Major assumptions used for calculating the actuarial gains and losses are as follows.

2018 2017

Discount rate 0.50% 0.50%

(3) Defined-contribution pension plans
Contributions by the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries to the defined-contribution pension plans were ¥63 million in the 

previous fiscal year, and ¥64 million ($609 thousand) in the current fiscal year.
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29. Stock option plans
(1) Expenses recorded in connection with stock options during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

General and administrative expenses ¥ 41 ¥ 44 $ 394

(2) Description of stock options
( i ) Description of stock options

2011 2012 2013

Number of eligible persons 
and their position

Executive officers of the Bank, 
7 persons

Executive officers of the Bank, 
7 persons

Executive officers of the Bank, 
7 persons

Number of stock options granted by 
class of share (Note)

Common stock:
22,120 shares

Common stock:
29,020 shares

Common stock:
25,490 shares

Grant date July 11, 2011 July 10, 2012 July 9, 2013

Vesting conditions Indeterminate Indeterminate Indeterminate

Eligible service period Indeterminate Indeterminate Indeterminate

Exercise period July 12, 2011 − 
July 11, 2041

July 11, 2012 − 
July 10, 2042

July 10, 2013 − 
July 9, 2043

2014 2015 2016

Number of eligible persons 
and their position

Executive officers of the Bank, 
7 persons

Executive officers of the Bank, 
7 persons

Executive officers of the Bank, 
7 persons

Number of stock options granted by 
class of share (Note)

Common stock:
23,230 shares

Common stock:
18,490 shares

Common stock:
24,120 shares

Grant date July 8, 2014 July 7, 2015 July 12, 2016

Vesting conditions Indeterminate Indeterminate Indeterminate

Eligible service period Indeterminate Indeterminate Indeterminate

Exercise period July 9, 2014 −
 July 8, 2044

July 8, 2015 −
July 7, 2045

July 13, 2016 −
July 12, 2046

2017

Number of eligible persons 
and their position

Executive officers of the Bank, 
7 persons

Number of stock options granted by 
class of share (Note)

Common stock:
17,190 shares

Grant date July 11, 2017

Vesting conditions Indeterminate

Eligible service period Indeterminate

Exercise period July 12, 2017−
July 11, 2047

Note:  The number of shares stated in the table above is calculated considering the effect of the share consolidation implemented on October 1, 2017, at a ratio of one share 
per 10 shares.
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( ii ) Volume and changes in stock options
Concerning stock options in issuance in the current fiscal year (fiscal year ended March 2018); the number of stock options is 

stated converted into the number of equivalent shares.
A. Number of stock options

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Unvested stock options (shares)

At the beginning of the fiscal year − − − − −

Granted − − − − −

Forfeited − − − − −

Vested − − − − −

Unvested − − − − −

Vested stock options (shares)

At the beginning of the fiscal year 11,890 10,920 22,810 20,930 17,470

Vested − − − − −

Exercised − 1,560 7,680 6,580 5,860

Forfeited − − − − −

Unexercised 11,890 9,360 15,130 14,350 11,610

2016 2017

Unvested stock options (shares)

At the beginning of the fiscal year 24,120 −

Granted − 17,190

Forfeited − −

Vested 24,120 −

Unvested − 17,190

Vested stock options (shares)

At the beginning of the fiscal year − −

Vested 24,120 −

Exercised 7,640 −

Forfeited − −

Unexercised 16,480 −

Note:  The number of shares stated in the table above is calculated considering the effect of the share consolidation implemented on October 1, 2017, at a ratio of one share 
per 10 shares.

B. Unit price information

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Exercise price (yen) 1 1 1 1 1

Average stock price when exercised 
(yen) − 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800

Fair unit value on the grant date (yen) 2,120 1,580 1,960 2,130 2,210

2016 2017

Exercise price (yen) 1 1

Average stock price when exercised 
(yen) 2,800 −

Fair unit value on the grant date (yen) 1,920 2,350

Note:  Average share price when exercised, and share fair unit value on the grant date, are calculated considering the effect of the share consolidation implemented on 
October 1, 2017, at a ratio of one share per 10 shares.
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(3) Method for estimating a fair unit price of stock options
The method used to estimate a fair unit price of stock options issued in 2015 at the end of the current fiscal year is described as 

below.
( i ) Valuation technique used: Black-Scholes model
(ii) Principal parameters and estimation method used

2017

Stock price volatility (Note 1) 28.387%

Expected time to exercise (Note 2) 7.7 years

Expected dividend (Note 3) 5 yen / share

Risk-free interest rate (Note 4) 0.040%
Notes:
1. Calculated on the basis of stock price performance during a period (April 2009 to July 2017) corresponding to the expected number of years remaining .
2. Estimated according to the weighted average method based on the allocated number, with regarding the period between the age of incumbent officers at the grant date 

and the retirement age pursuant to the internal regulations of the Bank as expected incumbency.
3. Based on the actual dividend for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017.
4. The rate represents the Japanese government bond yield corresponding to the expected time to exercise.

(4) Method for estimating the number of vested stock options
The Bank has adopted the method to reflect only the number of stock options that have been actually forfeited, because it is 

practically difficult to reasonably estimate the number that will be forfeited in the future.
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30. Income Taxes
(1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses ¥ 5,565 ¥ 6,343 $ 52,384 

Liability for retirement benefits 1,589 1,582 14,960 

Depreciation 1,204 958 11,337 

Impairment loss on land 820 813 7,727 

Devaluation of securities 750 550 7,064 

Others 1,749 1,927 16,466 

Subtotal 11,679 12,177 109,938 

Valuation allowance (6,381) (6,441) (60,070)

Total deferred tax assets 5,298 5,736 49,868 

Deferred tax liabilities    

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (5,384) (4,951) (50,678)

Reserve for advanced depreciation of non-current assets (123) (41) (1,166)

Others (7) (7) (75) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (5,515) (4,999) (51,919)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ (217) ¥ 736 $ (2,051)

(2) Effective income tax rate
2018 2017

Statutory effective tax rate 30.69% 30.69%

(Adjustments)

Non-deductible permanent differences such as entertainment expenses 0.72 0.59

Non-taxable permanent differences such as dividend income (0.45) (3.39)

Valuation allowance (0.95) (11.86)

Inhabitant tax on per capita basis 0.66 0.53
Reduction adjustment of deferred tax assets at the end of the period due to 
tax rate change 0.09 0.11

Tax Reduction for Developing Employment (0.25) (0.05)

Others 0.57 1.37

Actual tax rate at application of deferred income tax accounting 31.08% 17.99%

31. Asset retirement obligations
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

This note is omitted, as the total amount of asset retirement obligations is insignificant.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
This note is omitted, as the total amount of asset retirement obligations is insignificant.

32. Investment and rental property
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

This note is omitted, as the total amount of investment and rental property is insignificant.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
This note is omitted, as the total amount of investment and rental property is insignificant.
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33. Segment information
(1) Reportable segment information

The Group reportable segments are defined as operation segments for which discrete financial information is available and which 
are regularly reviewed by executive corporate officers at management committee meetings in determining resources to be allocated to 
the segments and in assessing their business performance at the corporate group level.

The Group focuses on banking operations (including operations that supplement and strengthen banking operations such as credit 
guarantee operations related to loans and credit card operations), also engages in lease operations and other operations related to the 
management of the Group. In order to strengthen these business areas at the core of banking operations, the Bank devises business 
plans for and implements business activities in the individual banking operations conducted respectively at each group within head 
office or in each area at banking offices, as well as at individual consolidated subsidiaries.

Consequently, the Group is structured into operating segments that form the bases of the operations of the Bank and its consolidated 
subsidiary companies, consisting of the two reportable segments “Banking” and “Leasing.” 

Banking is comprised of banking operations such as deposit operations, lending operations, and domestic and foreign exchange 
operations, as well as operations serving to supplement and strengthen banking operations such as credit guarantee operations and 
credit card operations. Leasing consists of lease operations for industrial machinery, computers, and office equipment.

(2) Method for calculating income, profit or losses, assets, liabilities, and other items by reportable segment
The accounting policies used for the reportable segments are the same as those presented under “Significant Accounting Policies 

and Practices.”
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(3) Income, profit or losses, assets, liabilities, and other items by reportable segment

Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment
Others Total

Banking Leasing Total

Ordinary income

Unaffiliated customers 37,079 7,297 44,377 306 44,684 

Intersegment 178 412 591 629 1,220 

Total 37,258 7,710 44,968 935 45,904 

Segment profit 6,790 417 7,207 389 7,597 

Segment assets 2,594,380 18,960 2,613,340 909 2,614,250 

Segment liabilities 2,474,904 13,652 2,488,557 169 2,488,727 

Others

Depreciation 924 7 932 7 939 

Interest income 24,502 499 25,002 329 25,332 

Interest expenses 1,504 78 1,583 0 1,583 

Reversal of allowance for loan losses − 0 0 − 0 

Provision of allowance for loan losses 784 − 784 0 785

Written-off of loans 440 − 440 − 440 

Increase in tangible fixed assets and
intangible fixed assets 2,805 10 2,815 − 2,815 

(Millions of yen)

Adjustment
Consolidated

financial
statement

Ordinary income

Unaffiliated customers (0) 44,683

Intersegment (1,220) −

Total (1,220) 44,683

Segment profit 82 7,679

Segment assets (14,631) 2,599,619

Segment liabilities (13,200) 2,475,527

Others

Depreciation (103) 835

Interest income (434) 24,897

Interest expenses (406) 1,177

Reversal of allowance for loan losses (0) −

Provision of allowance for loan losses (0) 784

Written-off of loans − 440

Increase in tangible fixed assets and
intangible fixed assets

(3) 2,812

Notes:
1.  Ordinary income has been stated in place of the net sales revenue used by non-financial firms. Adjustments for differences are stated with respect to the difference 

between operating income and operating income stated on the consolidated statement of income.
2. “Others” is a segment other than reportable segment, including computer related services and trading.
3. Adjustment amounts reflect elimination of inter-segment transactions, etc.
4. Segment income is adjusted to ordinary income stated in the consolidated statement of income.
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Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment
Others Total

Banking Leasing Total

Ordinary income

Unaffiliated customers 36,689 6,994 43,683 298 43,982 

Intersegment 194 300 495 284 779 

Total 36,883 7,295 44,178 582 44,761 

Segment profit 5,783 344 6,128 64 6,192 

Segment assets 2,667,325 19,201 2,686,526 667 2,687,194 

Segment liabilities 2,543,642 13,656 2,557,299 187 2,557,487 

Others      

Depreciation 1,096 5 1,102 4 1,106 

Interest income 23,981 519 24,501 1 24,502 

Interest expenses 1,436 74 1,510 − 1,510 

Reversal of allowance for loan losses 1,888 19 1,908 0 1,908 

Written-off of loans 431 − 431 − 431 

Increase in tangible fixed assets and
intangible fixed assets 3,096 17 3,113 − 3,113 

(Millions of yen)

Others Total

Ordinary income

Unaffiliated customers − 43,982 

Intersegment (779) −

Total (779) 43,982 

Segment profit 135 6,327 

Segment assets (14,028) 2,673,165 

Segment liabilities (12,632) 2,544,854 

Others   

Depreciation (167) 938 

Interest income (89) 24,412 

Interest expenses (73) 1,436 

Reversal of allowance for loan losses (21) 1,887 

Written-off of loans − 431 

Increase in tangible fixed assets and
intangible fixed assets (7) 3,106 

Notes:
1.  Ordinary income has been stated in place of the net sales revenue used by non-financial firms. Adjustments for differences are stated with respect to the difference 

between operating income and operating income stated on the consolidated statement of income.
2. “Others” is a segment other than reportable segment, including computer related services.
3. Adjustment amounts reflect elimination of inter-segment transactions.
4. Segment income is adjusted to ordinary income stated in the consolidated statement of income.
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Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Reportable segment
Others Total

Banking Leasing Total

Ordinary income

Unaffiliated customers 346,979 65,838 412,817 2,806 415,623 

Intersegment 1,846 2,832 4,678 2,675 7,353 

Total 348,825 68,670 417,495 5,481 422,976 

Segment profit 54,104 3,242 57,346 604 57,950 

Segment assets 25,106,600 180,740 25,287,340 6,279 25,293,619 

Segment liabilities 23,942,420 128,548 24,070,968 1,766 24,072,734 

Others    

Depreciation 10,320 56 10,376 39 10,415 

Interest income 225,730 4,890 230,620 13 230,633 

Interest expenses 13,518 699 14,217 − 14,217 

Reversal of allowance for loan losses 17,779 188 17,967 1 17,968 

Written-off of loans 4,058 − 4,058 − 4,058 

Increase in tangible fixed assets and
intangible fixed assets 29,147 160 29,307 − 29,307 

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Others Total

Ordinary income

Unaffiliated customers − 415,623 

Intersegment (7,353) −

Total (7,353) 415,623 

Segment profit 435 58,385 

Segment assets (132,046) 25,161,573 

Segment liabilities (118,905) 23,953,829 

Others

Depreciation (1,578) 8,837 

Interest income (845) 229,788 

Interest expenses (693) 13,524 

Reversal of allowance for loan losses (203) 17,765 

Written-off of loans − 4,058 

Increase in tangible fixed assets and
intangible fixed assets (66) 29,241 

Notes:
1.  Ordinary income has been stated in place of the net sales revenue used by non-financial firms. Adjustments for differences are stated with respect to the difference 

between operating income and operating income stated on the consolidated statement of income.
2. “Others” is a segment other than reportable segment, including computer related services.
3. Adjustment amounts reflect elimination of inter-segment transactions.
4. Segment income is adjusted to ordinary income stated in the consolidated statement of income.
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Related information
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(1) Information by service
(Millions of yen)

Lending
business

Securities trading
business Leasing business Others Total

Ordinary income from unaffiliated 
customers 20,180 9,276 7,297 7,985 44,741

Notes:
1. The figures represent “Income” in substitution for net sales to be presented by companies in other industries.
2. Lending operations and securities trading operations are constituents of the reportable segment “Banking.” Other constituents of “Banking” are stated combined with 

ordinary income of “Others” in this tabulation under “Others” stated in “Segment Information, (3). Amount of ordinary income, operating result, assets, liabilities, and other 
items.”

(2) Geographic information
( i ) Ordinary income

More than 90% of the Group’s income on the consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2017 is 
attributable to income from unaffiliated customers in Japan; accordingly, income by geographical area is not presented.
(ii ) Tangible fixed assets

More than 90% of the Group’s tangible fixed assets on the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2017 are located in Japan; 
accordingly, tangible fixed assets by geographical area are not presented.

(3) Information by major customer
This information has been omitted in light of the fact that no ordinary income from specified customers reaches or exceeds 10% 

of the ordinary income amount stated on the consolidated statement of operations.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)

(1) Information by services
(Millions of yen)

Lending
business

Securities trading
business Leasing business Others Total

Ordinary income from unaffiliated 
customers 19,935 9,069 6,994 8,155 44,155

Notes:
1. The figures represent “Income” in substitution for net sales to be presented by companies in other industries.
2. Lending operations and securities trading operations are constituents of the reportable segment “Banking.” Other constituents of “Banking” are stated combined with 

ordinary income of “Others” in this tabulation under “Others” stated in “Segment Information, (3). Amount of ordinary income, operating result, assets, liabilities, and other 
items.”

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Lending
business

Securities trading
business Leasing business Others Total

Ordinary income from unaffiliated 
customers 187,648 85,370 65,838 76,767 415,623

Notes:
1. The figures represent “Income” in substitution for net sales to be presented by companies in other industries.
2. Lending operations and securities trading operations are constituents of the reportable segment “Banking.” Other constituents of “Banking” are stated combined with 

ordinary income of “Others” in this tabulation under “Others” stated in “Segment Information, (3). Amount of ordinary income, operating result, assets, liabilities, and other 
items.”
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(2) Geographic information
( i ) Ordinary income

More than 90% of the Group’s income on the consolidated statements of operations for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 is 
attributable to income from unaffiliated customers in Japan; accordingly, income by geographical area is not presented.
(ii ) Tangible fixed assets

More than 90% of the Group’s tangible fixed assets on the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2018 are located in Japan; 
accordingly, tangible fixed assets by geographical area are not presented.

(3) Information by major customer
This information has been omitted in light of the fact that no ordinary income from specified customers reaches or exceeds 10% 

of the ordinary income amount stated on the consolidated statement of operations.

Information related to losses on impairment of fixed assets by reportable segment
This note is omitted, as the losses on impairment of fixed assets are insignificant.

Information related to amortization of goodwill and unamortized balance of goodwill by reportable segment
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
None

Information related to gain on negative goodwill by reportable segment
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
None
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34. Related party transactions
(1) Transactions with related parties

( i ) Transactions between the reporting entity and affiliates
A. Transactions with the reporting entity’s parent company and main shareholders (limited to companies, etc.), etc.

Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
Not applicable.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
Not applicable.

B. Transactions with the reporting entity’s non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, etc.
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

Not applicable.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
Not applicable.

C.  Transactions with companies, etc., that have the same parent company as the reporting entity and transactions with subsidiaries, 
etc., of other affiliates of the reporting entity

Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
Not applicable.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
Not applicable.

D. Transactions with the reporting entity’s corporate officers and main shareholders (limited to individuals), etc.
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

Type
Name

(company or
individual)

Location
Capital stock or 

equity
(million yen)

Business line or 
occupation

Percentage of
voting rights, etc., 
held (held by the 

related party)

Relationship
with the 

related party

Immediate family
member of 

corporate officer
Kazuyuki Yuasa − − Real estate

leasing operations

Direct
shareholdings

of the related party
0.00

−

Type Transaction 
content

Transaction 
amount Item

Balance at the 
end of the period
(Millions of yen)

Immediate family 
member of

corporate officer
Lending of funds − Loans 161

Transaction terms and method of determination of transaction terms, etc.
Identical to terms used with general transaction counterparties.



53

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)

Type
Name

(company or
individual)

Location
Capital stock or 

equity
(million yen)

Business line or 
occupation

Percentage of
voting rights, etc., 
held (held by the 

related party)

Relationship
with the 

related party

Immediate family
member of 

corporate officer
Kazuyuki Yuasa − − Real estate

leasing operations

Direct
shareholdings

of the related party
0.00

−

Type Transaction 
content

Transaction 
amount Item

Balance at the end of the period

(Millions of yen) (Thousand of U.S. 
dollars)

Immediate family 
member of

corporate officer
Lending of funds − Loans 155 1,459

Transaction terms and method of determination of transaction terms, etc.
Identical to terms used with general transaction counterparties.

(ii) Transactions between the reporting entity’s consolidated subsidiaries and related parties.
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

There were no material transactions.

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
There were no material transactions.

(2) Notes concerning the parent company or important affiliates
Previous fiscal year (From April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

None

Current fiscal year (From April 1, 2017, to March 31, 2018)
None
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35. Per-share information

Yen U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Net assets per share of common stock ¥ 5,197.40 ¥ 5,054.93 $ 48.92

Net income per share of common stock 165.57 175.94 1.56

Fully-diluted net income per share of common stock 164.91 175.21 1.55

Note 1: The following basis of calculation applies with respect to net assets per share, net income per share, and diluted net income 
per share for the period.

(1) Net assets per share

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Net assets as reported ¥ 128,310 ¥ 124,092 $ 1,207,744

Less: 4,763 4,431 44,839

Subscription rights to shares 187 205 1,768

Non-controlling interests 4,575 4,226 43,071

Net assets attributable to common shares at the end of the period ¥ 123,547 ¥ 119,660 $ 1,162,905

(Unit: Thousands of shares)

2018 2017

The number of shares of common stock outstanding 23,770 23,671

(2) Net income per share of common stock and fully-diluted net income per common share and basis for calculation are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Net income per share of common stock
Net income attributable to owners of parent ¥ 3,927 ¥ 4,184 $ 36,970

Net income not attributable to common shareholders − − −
Net income attributable to owners of parent related to common 
shareholders ¥ 3,927 ¥ 4,184 $ 36,970

(Unit: Thousands of shares)

2018 2017

Average number of shares of common stock outstanding 23,721 23,786

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2018 2017 2018

Fully-diluted net income per share of common stock
Adjustments to net income attributable to owners of parent ¥ − ¥ − $ −
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(Unit: Thousands of shares)

2018 2017

Effect of dilutive securities: 94 98

Subscription rights to shares 94 98

Summary of the potential shares that were excluded from calculation 
of fully-diluted net income per share of common stock because they 
have no dilutive effect

− −

Note: Diluted net income per share for the period is not stated given that a net loss was reported in the previous fiscal year.

Note 2: The Bank’s shares remaining in the “trust” are recorded as treasury stock in shareholders’ equity, which are deducted in the 
number of shares outstanding at the end of the year when calculating the net assets per share, and also deducted in the 
average number of shares outstanding during the year when calculating the net income per share.

(Unit: Thousands of shares)

2018 2017

Number of treasury shares outstanding at the end of the year, 
deducted when calculating net assets per share 340 411

Average number of treasury shares outstanding during the year, 
deducted when calculating net income per share 383 297

(3) On October 1, 2017, we implemented a consolidation of shares at a ratio of one share per 10 shares. For the purposes of 
calculating the amount of net assets per share, basic net income per share and the diluted net income per share of common stock 
for the period under review, the share consolidation is taken as having been implemented at the beginning of the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2017.

Important subsequent events
None
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Corporate Information

Directors and Executive Officers  (as of June 30, 2018)

Chairperson Tadaaki Ito

Director, President and
Representative Statutory Executive Officer: Masahiro Hayashi

Director and Representative Statutory
Senior Managing Executive Officer
(General Manager of ALM Headquarters): Masahiro Asakura

Director and Managing Executive Officer
(General Manager of Planning Headquarters):
 Shinji Sano
Director and Managing Executive Officer 
(General Manager of Business Support Headquarters)
 Toru Yuasa

Directors: Noriyuki Satake
 Kazuhiro Uchikami＊
 Masaru Nanbo＊

 Yuko Mitsuya＊

 ＊Outside Directors

Statutory Exective Officer 
 (Deputy General Manager of Business Support
  Headquarters and Finance Support Group Manager) :
 Hideyuki Maeda
Statutory Exective Officer 
（Deputy General Manager of ALM Headquarters
    and Risk Management Group Manager) :
 Osamu Watanabe
Statutory Exective Officer
（Head Office General Manager) :
 Eiichi Hasegawa

Corporate Data  (as of March 31, 2018)

Date of Establishment: December 19, 1899
Number of Shares Issued and Outstanding: 24,144 thousand shares
Paid-in Capital: JPY17,965 million
Number of Employees: 1,401

Consolidated Subsidiaries  (as of June 30, 2018)

The Fukugin Lease Co., Ltd. The Fukui Net Co., Ltd.
The Fukui Credit Guarantee Service Co., Ltd. The Fukugin Business Service Co., Ltd.
The Fukui Card Co., Ltd.
The Fukui Capital and Consulting Co., Ltd.

Service Network  (as of June 30, 2018)

Head Office: 1-1, Junka 1-chome, Fukui 910-8660, Japan
 Telephone: +81-776-24-2030

International Division: 66, Imaichi-cho, Fukui 918-8152, Japan
 Telephone: +81-776-26-9841
 Facsimile: +81-776-26-9842
 SWIFT: FKUIJPJT

Number of Domestic Offices: Fukui Prefecture...................76
 Ishikawa Prefecture..............10
 Toyama Prefecture.................4
 Shiga Prefecture ....................2
 Tokyo.....................................1
 Nagoya ..................................1
 Kyoto .....................................2
 Osaka ....................................1
 Other .....................................1

 Total....................................98

Correspondent Banking Network: 39 countries
 104 cities
 184 banks
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